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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ART Housing Finance (India)
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 Match 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act,
read with tule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2019 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Out responsibilities under those standards are farther described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financia! statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled ouy other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Repott to the members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (cont’d)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereomn.

In connection with out audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other infogrmation is matetially inconsistent with the financial
statements ot our knowledge obtzined in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the othet information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we ate required
to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the

date of this auditot’s report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Ditectots is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
tespect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This responsibiity also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; mzking judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

6. In preparing the financial statements, managemment is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (cont’d)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot errot, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggrepate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ot error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matetial
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(3) of the Act, we are also responsible
for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intetnal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ [Dvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a matetial uncerstainty exists, we ate requited to draw attention in out auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
out opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

CONCEer.,

* LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves [air presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance tegarding, among other matters, the planned scope

11.

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charped with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (cont’d)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

12. As

requited by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its

directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read

with Schedule V to the Act.

13. As

required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Otder, 2016 (‘the Otder’) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure I, a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

14. Furthet to our comments in Annexure I, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

2)

b)

9

d)

g

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as requited by faw have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from out examination of those books;

the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of

account;

in our opinjon, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with rufe 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

(as amended);

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed

as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company
as on 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 6 May 2019 as per Annexure I1

expressed unmodified opinion; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i the Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as
at 31 March 2019;
i the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
wete any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2019;
1. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 {cont’d)

iv.  the disclosute requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the petiod from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant
to these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001329N

Af\w\ 44%"\

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 6 May 2019
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of ART
Housing Finance (India) Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019
Annexure I

Based on the audit procedutes performed for the purpose of reporting a ttue and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of

our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(@ (1) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management duting the
yeat and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification of the property, plant and equipment is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) The Company does not hold any immovable propetty (in the pature of ‘property, plant and
equipment’). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(1){c) of the Order are not applicable.

(i) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order
are not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the repister maintained under Section 189
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iif)(a), 3(iii) (b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not

applicable.

(iv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction coveted under Sections 185 and
186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(1v) of the Order are not applicable.

) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) The Central Govetnment has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii)(@) The Company is tegular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and setvice tax duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and ather material statutory dues, as applicable, to
the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof werc
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they become

payable.

(b) There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise and value added tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate

authorities on account of any dispute.
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(India) Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(viii) ~ The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial
institution during the year. The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to government and
did not have any outstanding debentures during che year.

(ix) "The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments). In our opinion, the term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans

were obtained.

(x) No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
repotted during the period covered by our audit,

(xd) Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by the Company in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to
the Act.

(i) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order ate not applicable.

(xiify  In our opinion all transactions with the related parties ate in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements

etc., as requited by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  Duting the year, the Company has made private placement of shates. In respect of the same, in
our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirement of Section 42 of the Act and the
Rules framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised were applied for the
purposes for which these securities were issued, though idle funds which were not required for
immediate utilisation have been invested in liquid investments, payable on demand.

(xv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors ot
petsons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi)  The Company is not requited to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Walker Chandiok & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001329N

Aﬂ-‘!j\bx 4 aadon

Arun Tandon
Parther

Membership No.: 517273

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 6 May 2019
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of ART
Housing Finance (India) Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019

Annexure II

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR’) of the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Conttols

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal conttol over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that wete
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
mcluding adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recotds, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure 11 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of ART
Housing Finance (India) Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019 (cont'd)

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL Those Standatds and the Guidance Note
requite that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCol'R were established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Out audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCol'R and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intetnal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoI'R.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assutance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IECoFR include those
policies and procedures that (1) pettain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and faitly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assutance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company ate being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention ot timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to etror or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject
to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedutes may deteriorate.
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the membets of ART
Housing Finance (India) Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019 (cont’d)

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
overt financial teporting and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based
on intetnal control over financial reporting ctiteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intetnal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Walker Chandiok & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001329N

A’Swm 4 an Ao

Arun Tandon
Partner

Membership No.: 517273

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 6 May 2019




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
(AL amonnts in rupees, wntess othermise stated)

Particulacs Notes As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Macch 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital . 3 3,850,000,000 3,750,000,000
Reserves and surplus 4 161,590,496 3,506,583
4,011,590,494 3,753,906,583
Non-current liahilities
Long-term borrowings 5 1,001,878,560 425,437,606
Other long-term fiabilites 6 7,111,860 7,300,541
Long-ter provistons 7 19,743,039 20,484,502
1,028,833,459 453,222 649
Current liabilities
Shott-term borrowings 8 B65,219,407 108 485,898
Orther cutreat Jiabilities 9 265,552,706 559,780 561
Shortt-term provisions 10 3,627,133 3,277,193
1,134,399,246 671,543,652
TOTAL 6,174,823,201 4,878,672,884
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
'I'ﬂngib]e assets 11 76,616,967 81,460,414
Intangible assets 1 12,737,581 9,776,563
Non-cugrent investments 12 500,000 500,800
Deferred tax assets (net) 13 516,476 2,603,200
Long-term loans and advances 14 5,169,604,543 4,159,397 360
5,259,975.567 4,253,737,537
Current assets
Current investments 15 222,500,600 .
Cash and bank balances 16 119,928,153 115,102,514
Short-term loans and advances 17 512,136,875 485,577,147
Other current assets 18 60,282,606 24,255,686
914,847,634 624,935,347
TOTAL 6,174,823,201 4,878,672,884

The accompanying notes form an integral parr of these standalone financial statements,
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in owr report of even date,

Ffor Walker Chandiok & Associates -
Chattered Accountants

Fires Registiabion Ne. 0013 29

Arun Tandon Ritika Sati
Pastner . Company Sccretary
MEJﬂbU‘!ShP Me: 51#2%3 Membership No. ACS 24016

/"—?—,,-2__’__

Director
DTN 0003546341

Place : Guiugtam
Date : 6 May 2019

ART Housing

For and on behalf of the Bowrd of Directors of
y Finance (India) Limired

/ Panlkaj Jain

Choet Fmancad Offjeer

CRief Lxeeutive Officer

DN, 05285114




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AN amotnts in ripees, wnless athermie stated)

Pacticulars Motes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Revenue
Revenue from operations 19 870,612,616 424,634,206
Other income 20 42,072,446 76,635,484
Total revenue 912,685,062 501,269,750
Expenses
Hmployee benefits expense 21 305,751,571 197,890,975
Finance costs 22 237,031,121 13,868,951
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11 28,824,130 18,319,298
Orther expenses 23 123,339,695 117,544,326
Total expenses 694,946,517 347,623,550
Profit before tax 217,738,545 153,646,200
Tax expense
- Current tax 57,967,908 32,941,526
- Minimum alternate tax credit entitlesnent - (24,448,570)
- Deferred tax 2,086,724 38,761,838
Profit after tax 157,683,913 106,391,406
Earnings per share 24
- Basic 0.41 : 0.37
- Diluted 0.41 0.37
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Wallker Chandiok & Associates Fot and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Firmls Registvalion No.: 0013290

A’Nm Yandon v )(

Arun Tandon Ritilca Sati W Pankaj Jain
Partner 3 Company Sectetary Chief Financial Officer
Membership Ko: 51723 Membership No. ACS 24016

B
Raj Vikdsh Verma

Director
- Place : Gurugram DIN 0003546341
Date : 6 May 2019




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(A amontnts in rupers, uwless othenwise stoled)

; Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2019 3i March 2018
Cash flow from operating activities: al s
Profit before tx . 217,738,545 153,646,200
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28,824,130 18,319,298
Laoss on sale of propetty, plant and equipment : 506,731 22,802
Finance costs 237,031,121 13,868,951 |
K . fied
[xcess linbility written back (1,532,224 (7,646,439
Gain on mutal fund redemptiun (19,026,348) (MLO72,466)
General provision for standard asscts - 18,460,718 arl
General provision for standard assets weitten back (2,344,571) -
Loans and advances written off 1,155,707 2,603,234 ) I
Provision for sub-standard, doubtfil and loss assets 421 ;‘:’95 .
462,774,886 169,202,298
Direct taxes (paid)/adiusted (50,833,026) 32,941,526
Operating prolit before working capital changes 411,941,860 202,143,824
Adjustments for:
Loans disbursed (ner) {1,045,445,17) (3,625,665,168)
(ncrease) in other Joans and advances and other current assets (33,452,710) (64,932,465} bpre
(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabikities and provisions (293,087,154) 396,879,734 bW
[nterest and processing charges paid (237,295,030 (13,6045,033) nen
(Decsease)/ increase in long-terin liabiities (188,681) 2,462,301 |
MNet cash used in operating activities (1,197,526,741) (3,102,716,807)
Cash flow from investing activities: at
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {27,494,289) (14,188,448} ihle
Proceeds from disposal of propesty, plant and equipment 45 858 2,197 876 {
Decrease in deposits with banks {425,156) (86,735,791)
(favestment in)/ proceeds from redemption of curtent investmaents, net (203,473,652) A072, 460
MNet cash (used in) investing activities (231,347,239) (68,553,894)
Cash Mo from financing activities: il'csc
Proceeds from issuance of share capital TOO,O00,000 2,600,000, 064} :
Proceeds from long term borrowings 2,087,568,954 436,222,000
Repayment of long term borrowings (1,511,028,000) (3,284,394} }
Praceeds from short term borrowings, net 756,733,509 108,485 8U8 il'i(‘d
Net cash gencrated from financing activities 1,433,274,463 3,141,423,504
Net incrcasé/(dccrcasc) iu cash and cash equivalents 4,400,483 (29,947,109}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 159,368 IN06,567 .
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,559,851 159308 he |
4,400,483 (20,047,199) e
nd 1.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date,
For Walker Chandiok & Associates For and on behall of the Board of Dhrectors of e re
Chartered Acculmtﬂnts . ART Affordable Housing Finance (Indin) Limited :
Fiim's egtsﬂahon No..ool399n s '
APk ﬁ(awi
pee Arun Tandon Ritika Sati 7T Pl Jain
Partner Company Secrecary Chiet Finanend { M Tizer cont
Membershis M0 151723 Membership No. ACS 24016 omp
omril
P ets 1
Raj Vikash Veona i, res|
’ Director 7
Place: CGurugram DIN 0003546341 Aadrie! Fxeewtve Offed
Date : 6 May 2019 N 15285114
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory information to the financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019

Crratnity

Cratuity is a post employment benefit and is in the natare of defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the balance sheet
in respect of gracity is the present valie of the defined benefic obligation as at the balanee sheet date less the fair value of
plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actvarial gains or lasses. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated
a¢ the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuadon by an independent actuary using projected unit credit method,
Actuarial gain or loss arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuatial assumptions are recorded in the statement

of profit and loss i the year in which such gain or loss arise.

Gther short-terwe bengfits
Jixpense in respeet of other short-tesm benefits s recopnised on the basis of amount paid or payable for the period during

which services are rendered by the employees.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income-tax is determined as higher of the amount of tax payable calculated at the tax rates applicable to the relevant
assessment year on the sssessable income of the respective year or tax payable on book profic computed in accordance with
the provisions of section 115)B of the Income-tax Act, 1961

Deferred income-tax reflects the impact of current period timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
for the year and reversal of timing differences of carlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and tax laws
enacted or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date, Deferred tax assets ate recoguized only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty thar sufficient furure taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realized. In case of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax asscts are recopnised only to the extent
there is virmal certainty supposted by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which

such losses can be set off.

Further, deferred tax asset appearing in books is reviewed at each reporting date and is written down to the extent it is not
certain that the Company will pay taxes on future incomes against which such deferred tax assct may be adjusted.

Minimum Mrernace Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as curgent tax. The Company
recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal
income-tax duging the specified pettod, i.c., the period for which MA'T Credit is allowed to he catsied forward. In the year in
which the Gompany recognises MAT Credit as an asser, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of Profit

and Loss and shown as “MAT Credis Patitdement”

The Company reviews the “MAT Credit Fntitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
Company docs not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the yedr
ended 31 March 2019

1) Impairment of assets
The Company on an annual basis makes an assessment of any indicator that may lead to impairment of assets, If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recovetable amount of the assets. 1 such recoverable amount is less than the
cartying amount, then the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an Empairment
loss and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, If at the halance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impaitment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset s refllected at the recoverable
amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

k) Earnings per share
Basic catnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of ealculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or Joss for the year attriburable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average nurmber of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the cffeers of ali difutive potential
equity shares, except where the results would be anti-dilutive,

1) Contingent liabilities and provisions

The Company makes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of & past event where the outflow of cconomic
resourcey is probable and a zeliable estimate of the amount of the oblipation can be made.

‘for a contingent Hability when there is a:
the existence of which will be confirmed by the occurrence/non-oceurrence of one or more wncestain

¢ Adisclosute is mad

) jﬁossible obligaf__ n,
. events, not fully within the control of the Company; or

y where it is not probable that an outflow of resourees embodying cconomic benefits will he required o

i) present (}!)Jigilti 1
settle the obligation; or
iif) present obligation, where a reliable estimate cannot be made.

Where there is a present obifgation in fespect of which the ifkelthood of cutflow of sesourees is remote, no provision or

disclosure is made,

m) Segment reporting
The Company operates in a single tepottable segment i.c. lending, which have similar risks and returns for the purpose of
Accounting Standard 17 on ‘Segment Reporting” notified under the Companies {(Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 {as
amended). The Company aperates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic,

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and shott term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or

less.

o) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs, which are divectly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of PRI, 6l the time such assets are ready For
intended usc, are capitaiized as part of the cost of the agsers. Other horrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the yeas
in which they are incurred. Brokerage costs dizeetly attributable to a borrowing are expensed over the tenure of the
borrowing,
e
. //:\‘5/ ‘ﬁ"f‘? ;
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019

P Properties aequired under Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security
Interest Act, 2002 (the 'SARFAESI Act"),
The assers acquired by the Company under the SARFARST Act, 2002 are classified as 'Stock of acquired propertics' and are

valued ar net realisable value or outstanding dues, whichever s lower,

¢)  Share based payments
In case of stock option plan, measurement and disclosure of the employee shate-based payment plans is done in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Lmployee Shave-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountans of India as applicable for equity-settled share based payments.

The cost of cquiry=sertled rransactions iz measured using the intringic value method and tecognised, together with a
corresponding inerease in the “Stock options outstanding account™ in reserves. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
sertled transactions at cach reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultitately vest. The expense or credit recopnised
m the stacement of profit and loss for a period sepresents the movement in camulative expense recognised as at the beginning

and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

(This space bar been intentionally left blank)




ART Housing Finance (India) Limicted
Summary of significant sccounting policies and other explanatory infannation to the financizl statements for he year ended 31 March 2019
(AN anconndy in vgpees, sless othernise stated)

3 Shate capital

As at 31 Marcl: 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Number Ameunt Number Among
Authorised share capital
Hauity shaces of Ra. 10 cach 1000, 100,000 HLEBLHBO00 RIEERTGHNHTT A0 k)
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up eapital
Bquity shares of Rs. 10 cach 385,000,000 3 850.000,000 ATHN00,000 3 750 460 00

8) Terms/ riglits attached to equity shares

Tl Company has only one class of equity shiares having a par valae of Ry, 10 per share. Bach holder of equaty shares is entited to ove vete per shace, In the evemt ol Bquitacon of e
Company, holders of equity shaes will be eatitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after serdement of all the Tabilitics. The disribution will be in proporten ta the numher

of equiry shares held by the shareholders.

h)  Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the teporting periad

As at 31 Murch 2012 Ag it 31 Marcls 2088
Number Amount Nymber Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 373000,000 37000, HOUGO0.001 [RECIFIERETS
Add: Sbaces issued during the year 10,000,600 TG0, 273000000 2 730,16 g
Shares outstanding al the end of the year 385,000,000 3,850,000,000 375,000,000 3,750,000,080
c}  Details of shares held by the Hoelding Company *
As at M Macch 2059 As at 31 Mareh 2018
Number of shares Y af holding Nuinbes nf shares Yol holding
hetd held

AR'T Business and Consumer Finanee (Indiz) Private Tamsted 385,000,000 TEH.0N 374,999.000 Y

*

As per the vecordls of the Comgpanyy, inchicing its regivier of sharchullersd memlers sund other dectuentions, if any, rweived frant shovchollers regending bosgficint interest, the alere sharchofthg tepsoveirts Foth foont owed
¢ ) 1 e ¢ i o g 4 i i

bentefrciod wwnersbip of shires,

d)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share capitat of the Company *

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Number of shates % of holding Number of shares o ol holding
held lield
ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Limited 385,000,000 1O 374 999,900 DIUD I

¥ As per the recurdls of the Companty, inchuing its register of shurcholiersf neewrbers and other decharntions, if any, received frovr sharchuiders regan dhing beseficial entervst, the abore shavchulding reprvsents both fogeed vl

Denefivied vivncrship of shares,
e) Employee Stock Option Schemes (ES0S)

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited had in the previous year snnounced and adopred ESOS scheses Tor s eryployees wherem each OPUDTL fepiesenls voe ity sl of the
Company. Nomination and Remuncration Committee constituted by the Board of Dircetors admimsiers vach of the plns.

The shaccholders of the Company at theie mecting dated 29 May 2017 approved the PAAMEL ESOP < AMAY 2017 scheme congssting ol 2300080 stock optipns representing 20N
fully paid up equity shaces of Rs 10 cach of the Company to be issued in one or more anches 1o cligible cmployees ol the Gompany. The Nemmation acd Remuseratson Conmmines
canstituted by the Board of Ditectors of the Company has, at its meetiog held on dated 29 May 2017, 3 November 2617 and 8 December 2007, granted, following the inwinsic method
of accounting as is presesihed in the Guidance Note issucd by the Iustitute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting for Employees Share Based Payments Fhe Guidelines™,
Howuver, the Company has icreaesd the overall mit of stock options up (o 3,000,000 undet the said scheme on recommendations of Nomination and Remuseration Conmiteeer and

approval of share holders #ide their geneeal mecting held on 4 Apoil 2008, As the uptions have been graated at intdnsic valoe, there is no emplayee stock compensanon expense on
29 May 2019, whereby the options vest un each vesting, date as pee the vesting sehedule provided in

account of the same. These options vest with effect from the first vesting date i.e.
the Seheme.




ART Housing Finance (Indis) Limited
Summary of signifieant decounting policies and other explanatory information Lo the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2019

1M samstrenty o0 guprer, sndiny wihernne statodf

i)

{ii)

(iif)
(iv)
)
)]

)

(i)

eails relaed to Employee Stock Option Schemes (ESOS) of the Company:

cubirs

AHFL ESOS - MAY'2017

b ¢ e

The e
[ace value of a share of the Company as on date of grant.

cise priee shall e suely pwiee as determined by the Board of Divectors from tme to time, being not less than the

Vestmg conditions

On expiry of one year- 0% of options granted
Onr expiey of two year- 20% of oprions granted
Onespiry of rhree year- 20% of oprions granted
Om expiry of four year- 30% of options granted
On expiiy of five year- 30% of options geanted

Maxinum rerm of options pranted

A yenrs froms the date of vesting

VUstng requicemients

Contineed employiment at the vesting date

lxerense penod

‘I'he exercize period shall be deteemined by the Board of Directors in consortium with the liquidity event,

Pricinp, Foroula

Caleulaten is based on G vatue method

Moy

Option movement during the year (For each ES808):
Particulars

Number of aprions oustanduyge at the beginming of the year
Number of options grasited ducng the veas

Nunnbee of aptons Fofeied Aapsed duging the yeae

Number of aptions vested during the year
Number of aprions xevcised dueng e

Number of shares arsang as a result ol ex

ar

s of opliens

Number of opuan: outztanding at the end ol the year
Number of stock exercisable at the end of the year

Grant date

20 May 2017

3 November 2017
20 April 2018

24 September 2018
12 Mareh 2019

Pros-torma acconntmg, for croplovee stock options:

The Company applics intrinsic valie

lizes by exveese of opuons (INR) G seheme is implemented dizeetly by the Company

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
2,105,000 -

2,993,000 2,105,400
{508,000) -

4,500,000

2,105,000

Weighted average remaining contracual life
(in daye)

31 March 2019 31 Macch 2018
580 845
738 1,103
3 .
1,064 .
1,233

bsedt ethad of accounting for deternsming compeisation cost for its stock-based compensation plas. ad the compensation cost been applied

wsing the far value approach, the Company's necinenme and basic and diluted earnings per share as eeported would have been reduced to the pro-forma amounts as indicated below:

Particulars

Trafi alier i (a8 reported)

L.
Adjusted pro-forma profit

Basie 1§

- Aseported
- ro-forma
Diluted 11§
- Asreporied

- Pro-forma

The fair value of optivns was estimated on the date of grant using the Biack-Scholes moded with the following significant assumptions

Particulars

Risk free interest vate §in "o}
Espected life {n years}

Voluiliy (in %)

Drividend yield Gin ™3)

Wonghted averape oxevase prce

Wiegghted average e yalue of stock oplion

- Add: Btock bazed emplovee compensation expease debited to the Statemeot of Profic and Loss

Stack based employee compensation expense based on far value

For the year ended

Far the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

57,683,913 106,391 406
9,219,317 5,245,436
148,464,596 101,145,970

0.4 a37

0.39 035

041 0.37

0.38 0.35

Far the year ended

Paor the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
7.86% 1.86%
5 yeass § yeats
15.71%% 14.13%
0.00% .00%
1,00 10.00
34 3.38

The expeeted life of the stock 1 based on Tustoreal daca and curveent expeetations and is not necessanly indicative of exercise patterns that may aceur, The expected voladlity reflects the
assumption that thie histoncal volarding over a pesod simila o the ke of e options i3 indicative of fotare trends, which may also ot necessanly be the actual putcome, Puether, the
waluation Tias bees conducted basss e budgets, foreeasts and projections provided by he managemeat which are oot been apiucd by the anditozs,

No shaves have been issued presuant 1o contract withowt papment being reccived in eash, allotted as Fally paid up by way of bonus issues and brought hack since the incowporation of

the Company




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amostts in vupees, snless vibertise siated)

As @t As
31 Marchs 204% 31 March 2018
4 Rescrves and surplus
Surplus/(Deficit) as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening batavce as at the beginsing of the year {17.371,098) {HIZ A8 H23)
Net profit for the year . 157,083,913 106,391 16
Less: Appropriation to statatory reserve
- Transferced ro statugory reserve 6,916,478
- Special reserve under section 36 (1)(viil) of Income-tax Act, 1961 24,619903
Closing balasice as at the end of the year 108,775,432
Statatory reserve (As per the Section 200 of the Nationat Housing Bank Act, 1987) read with
section 36 (1) (viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961
Opening balance as at the beginning of the year 21.274,281
Add: Teansfeered from the statement of profit and loss 31,536,783
fess ‘Utilised ducing the year -
Closing balanice a5 at the end of the year 328150064 23.278.28)
161,590,496 3,906,568
- shall create aveserve fusd and teanster theren asum ot Jess

Section 29C () of The National Housing ank Act, 1987 defines that every huustng fance mstitotion which 15 2 Compan
than twenty pescent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of profic and loss before any dividend is
Company under Seetion 36(1) (vilf) of lncome tax Act 1961, i5 considered 1o be an eligible transfee. The Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 24.619.905 forevious vear - s,
11,572,332 ) 10 special reserve in teons of Section 36{1) (vii) of the Tacome-tax Act 1961 considered eligible for special reserve u/s 290 of Nadenal Housiog Bank et 1987

declaved, Tor this pumose any special reseeve created by the

in terms of the requirement of National Housing Bank's {NHB) Circular No. NITBND)/DRS/Pol.Circular61 /261314 daced 7 Apeid 2014, mfosmation on Beserve Pund wnder
seetion 30C(1) of the National Mlousing Bank Act, 1987 has been fsmished under noe 3¢,

As As
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
5 Long-term borrowings
Secured
Term loan
;' ' - from Natiena) Housing Bank 576,533,000 F30,986.00000
- frosn banks ’ T4 T062 ILL30.000
Less: Current matusities of Inng term boseowings (refer note 9) {123,302,207) 125978 000}
1,001,978,560 425,437,606
Repayment terms and security for the outstanding lonpeterm horrowings (including current maturitics)
From National Housing Bank:
§) is repayable in 60 quarterly instalments which had commenced on 30 September 2017 and the Tast mstaloent will be due on | lanwary 2031
From Banks:
Teon loan oustansing as a1 3t March 2019 amouating 1o:
1) Rs 37752406 is repayable in 16 equal quartedy instalments after 2 moratorum period of 6 months coimgencing from 31 Sugust 2017
1) Rs. 9,995,356 &5 repayable in 20 cqual quartedy instalments after a moratorium period of 24 months and the Tast insabnent will be due on 3 June 2079,
iif) Rs. 500,000,000 i repayable in 20 equal quartedy instalments afier a moratoriue period of 24 months commencing from 3 December 2019,
The aforementivned tern Toans are secured by way of bypathecation of the housing loan receivables with cover of T HD dmes 1o 1.25 tnes of the owtstanding exposire
The interest rate for the aforementioned tenn Toans ace nked 1o the Marginal Cost of Fund Based Lending Rate (MELR} of the vespective lenders
As As a
Al March 2019 31 March 2018
6 Other long-term liabilitics
Lease equalisation reserve 375202 367, 1t
Advance feomn customers 4,350,140 2733051
71,860 7300541
7 Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits {refer note "2’ below) 248,545 LR
\

Genenml provisions towards standazd nssets 17,238,404

[eefer note 50 VIIT (e}

19,743,034




ART Monsing Pinanee (fndig) Limited
Smmary of sipgniEeunt sceountings policies and other explanatory mfornation to the Erancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

{ A cnmageds i vupees, Redeis wthenwese iated}

ay

. Average vemaining working lives of smployees (yeass)

fanployee henelits

The Compant s followng e noutios Accousimg Standaed 15 Bevised 2008) Employee Benefits’ and using Pesjecred Unit Credic Medhod and sther assamptions as per the industry,

Grawity {funded)

(i) Chanypes inpresent value of the defined benefit obligations:
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the veac

Taterest cost

Current service cost

Beueins pail

Netarial gan on obliganons

Present vatue of cbligation as at the end of the yeur

(i) Changes in fuir value of plan assed:

Fair value of plan assets as at the begmamg ol the year
vetualesum on plin asieis

Contrbutions

Bene fus pasd

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year

(iti) Amount of ablipalicn recoguised in Balance Sheet:
Present value of the oblipanon at the end of the year

Pawe vatue of plan asscis at end of year

Net liability recognised in Batance Sheet

Non-cusrent

Carrent

(iv) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Current service cost

Tnterest cost

Yetual retuen o plan assets

Actuarial loss/ (gain on obligations

Tatal expense recognised in the statement of prefit and loss

{) Assumplions used
Phsceunt vate

Faugure salay inerease raw
Mortabity

Rwerape past seivice {years)

Veerage age {vears)

Avevape vemaining working ves of eniplovees (vears}

Mirition rat

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
2,153,015 895,045
150,111 64,891
1,860,400 1,151,145
(472327) .
15918 41,934
3,707,787 2,153,015
1,181,772 -
76,239 2,821
419,537 1,178,951
(472,327} ;
1,205,221 1,181,772
aion? 2,153,615
1,205,221 1181772
2,502,496 971,243
2484545 964,280
1794 6,963
Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,860,400 1,151,145
150,711 64,891
(76,239) (2,821)
15,918 41,934
1,950,790 1,255,149
As at Ag at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
7.00% 1.25%
10.00% 10.00%
TALM 2006-08 Ultimare TALM 2006-08 Ultimate
1.2 Years 0.8 Years
310 Years 30.6 Years
29.0 Years 29,8 years
20.00% 20.00%

The discount rale i generally based upon the market yicld avadiable on the Government bonds at che reporting date with 2 term that matches that of the liabilitics and the salary growily

vate takes account of miflation, semority, promotion and other selevant factors on lang term basis.

Phe preseat value of the defined Benehit obligation, the G valse of the plan assets and the surplus or deficitin the plan ansing en the plan liabilities and the plan assets are as follows:

Particudass 31 March 201% M March 2018 31 Marcls 2017
Preseal value of defined beoefl obligaion 3,707,017 2,153,015 895,045
Fair valie of plo assets 1,205,221 1,181,772 -
Peficit in phin asses 2,502,596 071,245 805,045

Compensated absences {unfunded) |

0} Reeonetiation of opening and elosing balances of the present value of the defined benefir obligations:-

Present value of obligation as at the begmning of the year

Currenl service cost

Presesitvalie of obligation as at the end of the year

) Breakop of the expruse cecogpized i the stement of peofic and loss is as follows:

¢
Toral expease vecopmsed e stalement of profit and loss

TEND SEVICE C0RT

Sverage pastsenvice (years)
Average age (years)

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
522,985 414,537
322,985 414,537
As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
- 1,225,038
. (1,225,038)
Tor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
. {1,225 (138}
s (1,225,038)
NA NA
NA NA
NA NA




ART Hausing Pinance (Indin) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informsation 1o the finaucial statements far the year ended 34 March 2019
(AW amonnts in ragpees, saless wihennise safed)

As atl
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2648

B Short~term borrowings

Secured

Loans repayable on demand from banks: cash credit facifitics 219407 8,185,808

Ferm loan fram banks - 10U

Unsecured

Inter-corporate deposits 863,000,006 -
865,219,407 108,185,848

Notes:
1) Cash eredits ave secured by way of hypathecation of the housing loan receivables with minimum cover of 125 times of te outstanding expasuse

i) Teom lvan amounting to Rs. 100,000,000 is repayable in 4 equal quarterly @istalinons consnencig from 7 June 2008 and i seeured by way of hypoaheeatmn of the [ERNERTITY PPN

recetvables with minimum cover of 111 times of the outstanding exposuse. The loan was tully repaid an 7 March 2019,
iii} Inter-corporate deposits of Rs. 865,000,000 are unsecwred which is repayable by 31 Macch 2020,

9 Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long-térm boreowings {refes note 5)
Tnterest accrued but not due on borrowings

22302202

WANYEE

25978100
203908

Employee relaced payables 17545,067
Advairee from customers 17,893 806 13 15,183
Statutory dues 2,637 843 k MOk
‘Temporacy bovk overdraft* 76,486,082 438,34 250
Lease cqualisauun TCRCIVE 1.814,704 RAG8un
Other acerued labilities 17,006,387 REEURTETS
265,552,706 584,780,561
* temporary book everdeaft of Rs. 76,486,682 {previons yeae- Rs 478,394,250 } represents cheyues issued towards disbursements 1o borrowers but not eneashed as at
31 Macch 2019,
10 Short-tern provisions
Pravision for employee benefits [Refer note ()} 17051 0963
General provisions towaeds standard nssets 3,187,387 327000
[refer note 30 VIIT (¢
Proyvigion for sub standard, doubtful and loss assets 121,794
frefer note 30 VIII {d)}
3,627,133 3,277,143

(T his space has been tutenitenafly feh bk




AR'T Housing Finance {India) Limited
Summary of signilicant accounting policics and other explanatory information 1o the (inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

£V ettty 0 Fpes, dicss oibiwise statedt

12

MNon current investments
Nty
Lnvesunent in equity iustruments

e vestments, valued at cost

T a subsichany company (unquetesdy
SO0 Spreviows vear 000 equuy shaves of Rs 10 each in ART Dhistributon (1) Tavate Limited

Appregate amount of unguoted mvestments

Deferred 1ax assct, net

Deterred tax asset avising on accouns ol iming diffevence on 2
Proswsmion for lease equadisation
Provision fur stindard assets, sub-standard, donbiful and loss assets
CHbers

Tesa: Dreterred s habahity ansing on accomt of gy, diiference on:
iy, cliffe ce ant depreciabion famovtisaton of propeery, plant and equipment

serve under secuon 360150 of the Income-tax et

Langelerna toans and advances
Consdered gol)
Housing loaus
Steared -
- Individuals
= Others

Qthers loans
Secared
- Individuals
- Chibwees

{Unseeured aud considered good}

Seanily deposits
Capial advances

Prepatc wicomestas et of provision for taxes and Re 1109001 misaimuen:
aligrnate ty evedst enttdement wibised w the current year

7 i alierpate tax credit eatitlentent

Hi

Currentinvesiments
Nalwed ar lowee of cost or far vabue)

Tovestment in Mlium! Funds (quoted)
148,279 (uvevious year - uil) umits of Re. 3003004 cach of Bicla Sun Life Cash Plus - growth - direet plan

9,765 {previous year - of) uaits of Rs, 4,557.1361 each of Reliance Ligaid Fund - treasury plan - growth - divect plan

161,157 {previous year - nil} units of Rs. 2761275 of 1C1C] Pendeatiad Liguid Fund- gsowth - divect phn
P2LEIN Qprevinug year - mal) units of Re, 36743769 of HDEC Ligquid Fuad
1.8942 of SBI Premvier Liguid Fund

15214 {peevdons year - oif) units of Rs, 2924

‘prregale book value of quoted wyvesiments
Mavker value of quoted savesmients

Cash and bank balances

Casli and cash equivalents
Cazh in hand
Bank balances in

- Current acconnts

Other bank balances
Drepessats with matuvity of fess than theee monghs
Dreposirs with statanity o than diree months but less than reclve months

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000
504,000 500,006
1,330,053 1,570,843
0,076,668 6,636,580
929,692 483,710
(650,621) (3,776,391
(7,169,316) (3,311,673
516,476 2,603,200
3,955,304,167 2,397,101,754
106,775,731 286,012,774
995,195,643 $39,902,183
86,508,059 603,279,985
7,502,943 7,234,384
- 500,000
3,187,829 413,710
13,039,569 24,448,570
5,169,604,543 4,159,397,360
44,500,000 -
44,500,000 -
44,500,000 .
44,500,000
44,500,000 .
222,500,000 -
222,500,000 .
222,742,203 .
311,690 .
4,248,161 159,368
4,559,851 159,308
632,712 400,000
114,735,590 114,343,146
119,928,153 115,102,514




AR'F Housing Finance (India) Limited
Sumnmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the year encled 31 Macch 2419
(1Y amennts u vgpecs, utess othermise steifed}

As i As e
31 Mareh 2019 JEMarch 2018
17 Shart-term loans and advances
{Comsidered pood)
Housing loans
Secuped -
192,838,112 T18.252,533
125,269,253 192,136,353
ITAT0I6R M05037
144,349,133 127570 8 14
(Unsecured and considered goud)
Advances recpvérable 1.or in kind or for value to be received 0,233,843 12068081
1540 Sudann

Balanct with govesament authority 2,206,180

512,136,875 485,577,147
18 Other current s§sets

Interest
- acerued and due on loans 15,186,333 1708018
- acctugd but not due o loans A2,4003.766 18,687,280
- acerued on fixed deposits 1,089,187 178,358
Stock of acquired propertics (heid for sale) 1,603,100 3388400
60,282,606 24,753,686

(This spaace has beca stentionally foft blank)
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

(A2 comentnls b rupees, sndess othernise stated)

19

20

21

22

23

Revenuc from operations

Interest on housing koans and other loans
Interest income on deposits with banks
Fees and other chacges

Orher income

Txcess lability/provisions witten back

Gain on sale of current investnents

Geneeal provision For standaed assets, written back
Tsofit on sale of acquiced properties
Miscellancous income

Employee benefits expense

Salativs, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other fands
Contribution o gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs
Interest expense

- on borrowings
Processing fees

Other expenscs

Rent

legaland professional chacges

Rates and 1axes

Eleeteicity

Directors sittiog, fees

Office maintenance expenses

Secusily expenses

TInsurance expenses

Comimission expenses

Communication expenses

Toss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (refer note 32)
Advertisement and business promotion expenses
Travelling and conveyance

Reeruitment expenses

General provision for standard assets

Provision for sub-standdrd and loss assets

Loans and advances written off

Miscellancous expenses

Barnings per share - Bagic and diluted

(a) Computation of profit attributable to cquity shareliolders
Net profit after tax attdburalic to cquity sharcholders

() Computation of weighted average number of shares
Base fin nos.)
Diluted (in nos)

(¢) Nominal value of equity share

(d) Earnings per sharc
- Basiw
- Drluted

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

THEB87,007 274,906,140
9,682,669 3,986,261
TONZ2,540 1,681,203
870,612,616 424,634,266
1,332,224 7,616,439
19,026,348 LTI A66
234,57
515,120 -
18,654,183 3R016,579
42,072,446 76,638 484
288,455,960 186,248,280
12,085,058 8,100,549
1,950,790 1,235,149
3,259,763 2,280,948
305,751,571 197,800,478
236,335,096 11643451
696,025 3,225,508
237,031,121 13,868,951
25,517,701 24 194 405
29,525,731 27,149,564
3494218 2,693,110
4,739,526 3,382,471
343,200 SHL M
13,543,987 10,335,774
357,652 T3 340
2,425,095 1,770,464
11,426,056 TRETT
BIM2636 3300054
506,731 22802
AT5000 -
3,193,367 2405492
9,666,502 BU08 074
3,400,639 188,71
- 18460717
421,795
1,155,707 2,605,234
4,803,452 3,729,328
123,339,695 £17,544,326
157,683,043 6,391,100
ARAD45,205 REER RO el
387,679,521 286,418
10 tu
(S]] 37
41 137




ART Flousing Finunce (Indin) Limized

Summury of significant accounting policics and other explanatory informatéion to the financial statemnents for she year ended 31 March 2019

£V ctmentatits inr guiproes, ness sthorsse stiilod)

25

Related party disclosures

Relted party disclosures, as requaved by the notshied Accoustng Standard 18 - Related party disclosures presceibed in the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2006 issued by the Centeal Government in exercise of the powers confersed under section 133 of the Act are preen below:

Holding Comgpany

: ART Capitat (Inclia) Prsvate Limited (Upto 20 March 2018)

: AR Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Limited (from 21 Macch 2018)

Fellow subsnlanes of mmediate Holding Company
Pavent of the Halding Company

Subsidiary Company

Koy management pecsonnel (KM

Farterprses that direetly ve ndivecdy are under

common control and \\'llll whom transactions done

during the year + ART Fiatech (India) Private Limited

o ART Capital Advisory fladia) Prvate Limited

Transactious with related purtics during the year

The followiy rable provides the wial amount of transactions that have leen entered into with related pactics for the relevant financial year:

£ ART Distabution (ndia) Private Limited

¢ ART Specal Sinatons Finance (Tndia) Limited
¢ ART Venwre Pinance {Tolia) Privace Limited

: ART Capial (Todia) Private Limated (from 21 March 201 8)

. Arvind [1ali, Managing Pirectos and Chief BExceutive Officer

- ART Busimess and Consumer Finance {India) Private Limned (Upto 20 March 2018)

Particulars For the year ended For the year cnded
31 Murch 2019 34 March 2018
Transactions during the year
Holling Company
ARE Capraal (Indlia) Privaue Lisviedd formeddy dimnt as RAAS Copitad (Tnediea) Private 1 mived:
Reunbussement of expenses receved - 9,000,000
Teansfer of Lived assets - 1,074,628
AT Business and Consumer Finnuce Tadia) Privace Linvited
Tasue of share capital 100,000,000 2,600,000,000
Rembursenment of expenses received - 21,000,000
Key management persanocl
Remunerauon paud
Avvind [Taly 16,690,619 12,424,598
Other eocities i which key managemcent personnel or their relative has significant influence
Inter-corporate deposits seceived during the period
ART Special Situations Finance (Indhia) Lanited 750,000,000 .
ART Venture Finanee (Tidia) Private Limited 310,000,000 -
ART Fintech (Jodia) Private Limited 60,000,000 -
AR Capstal Advisory (India) Private Limized 80,000,000
Inter-corporate deposits repaid during the period
ART Special Swaavons Faanee (India) Limiled 750,000,000
ART Ventre Finance {Endia) Private Fansited 310,000,000 -
ART Fintgeh (Indin) Poivase Linited 6,000,800
ART Capital Advisory (Tndn) Provare Tamaed 80,000,000 -
Interest paid on inder-corporste depasits during cthe period
ART Speeit Stvations Finance (India) Limsted 11,092,465
ART Venture Finance (India) Private Limited 13,997,534 -
ART Fintech (India) Privare Linvited 2,349,315
ART Capial Advisory (India) Private Limited 3,602,192 -
Balance nutsranding as at the end of year
Advances/ expenses reenverable
AR'T Capitat (India) Privare Lisced Sormerly knowa as RAAS Capital (Tndicr) Private L imited - 1,076,628

Nare: The remuneration to the key managedial personnel does sotinclude the provision made for gratuity, a3 it is detesmined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a

whole.

{
'
i
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|
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the vear ended 3 Mareh 2019

(AT cmvontals i riipees, sinkess atbervise stated)
Tor the year caded
35 March 2019

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018

26 Payments to statutory auditors #

As auditors 275,000 250410
For other services 130,000 300
For reimbursement of expenses 58,380 38,45

483,380 383,450

* exciniing appliceble feves

27  Contingent liabilities, capital and other commitments
a. Contingent liabilities

There are numerous interpretative issues eclating w the Hon'ble Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated 28 Febraary 2009 an provident fand on whech (he Company

secking legal advice, Howover, as a matter of caution, the Company has made a provison on prospective bass fromy te date of the aforementioned 30 owder e

Company, on receiving further clarity on the subject, will adeguarely update its provision.

b. Capital and ather commitinents

Estinated amount of contacts remaiomp w be execuied on eapitat account and othess, and not provided for {ner of capial advances) is nil {previous vear Ry
6,131,900).
28 Reconciliation of provisions As at As at

31 March 2049

34 Mazch 2018

General provision against Standard Asscts

Balance at the beginning of the year 22,790,452 4,339,734
Provisions made/ {reversed) dunng the vear (2,344,571 P8160,718
Balance at the end of the year EARRER LY 220,432
Provision for sub standard assets, doubtful or loss ussets
Balastce at the beginning of the year - KO8, 700
Provisions made/ {reversed) during the year 421,795 (RYB,700
Balance at the end of the year 321,195 -
29  Disclosures in respect of non-canceliable operating leases
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Rent payable not later than one year 18,176,940 17,189,009

25,750,674 43,927,620

Rent payable fater than one year but not later than five years
Reat payable later then five years




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Summury of significant accounting policies und other explanatory information to the uancial statenents for the year ended 31 March 2019

& Fl vty e vygiees, sreders efherwee stafed)

30

1

I

nr

Addwonal Disclosares mterms of Cireular no. Nosheation No. NHBIFCCGDIR/MDACEO/2016 daced 9 February 2017

Cupital

1) Capstal o Risk Asser Rawer - CRAR (%)

iy CRAR-Tier T Caputal (%4)

(i) CRAR-Tier 1T Capral {74)

(v} Amount of subordinated debt rased as Trer- 71 Capizal
(v} Amoumt suised by sssue of Pespeiaal Debr astumenis

Reserve fund under section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Balance a1 the beginning of the year
a) Sty reserve under section 290 of the Natosal Housing Bank Act, 1987
B Amount of speeial reserve under section 36(1)(vin) of Income-tax Acs, 1961
tken into account for the parposes of sawtory reserve under Section 29C of the
NEIB Aer, 1987
o) Toal

Addition/ appropriation/ withdrawal during the year

Add:
) Amount transferred under section 290 of the NFIB Act, 1087
b) Amount of special veserve under seetion 36(1){vEIY of Income-tax Act, 1961
takea inio aceount for the pumaeses of statory reseeve under Secuon 29C of the
NHB Act, 1987

Less:
@) Amount appropriated from the statory veserce under seetien 29C of the N Act, 1987
b) Ameunt withdvawn from the speeial reserve w/s 36{1)(vie) of Tncome-tax
Act, 1961 taken into accoune which Tas been aken ineo account for the purpose
of provision u/s 29C of the NFIR Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year
3} Statutary reseeve /s 290 of the Nagonad, Hlousmyg Bank Act, Y987
by Amount of special reserve w/s 36{H ol Tncome -ax Act, 1961 mken o
account for the pumposes of sanory reserve under Sectson 29C of the NHB Ac,
¢) Total

Investmenis
Particulars

Value of investments
() Gross value of mvestments

Codla A Tndia
) Owside Tadia

(i) Provison {oe deproesation
fa) In Tadia ;
M} Oursicle Tndia
(1) Net value of investments
(@) In India
) Ourside Tndia -
Moveniént of provisions held towards depreciation on investinents
() Opening balance
(i) Add: Provisions made during, the year
(i) Less: Wrdie-of / wrinen-hack ol excess provisions during the year

{iv) Closing balance

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
116.01% 104.29%
115.40%% 103.66%%
0.60%% 0.63%%
il Nit
Nil Nit
9,905,949 il
11,372,332 Nil
21,278,261 N
6,916,878 9,905,949
24,619,905 11,372,332
Nil Nil
Nl il
16,822,827 9,905,949
35,992,237 11,373,332
52,815,064 21,278,281
As at As at
31 Murch 2019 31 March 2018
223,000,000 500,000
Nil Nil
Nil Ni#
Nil Wil
223,000,000 500,000
Nif il
Nil Nil
Nil il
Nil Nil
Nil Nl




ART Housing Finance (Indi) Limited
Summary of significant accounting palicies and ather explanatory information to the financinl stutemcents for the year ended 31 March 2019 he
LAY amonnts in rupees, undess atbenvise stated)
IV Derivatives
@, Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (ITS)
Particuiars As ay Ag at
31 March 2099 31 March 2018 N
1) The notional principal of swap agseements Nil Nil ‘_"
(it} Losses which would be incurred if countesparties failed to fulfil thew obligations il Nl
under the agreements ha—
iti) Coflateral requice he housmy Bnanee companies upon entering o swaps Ni N
Collateral required by the i G I [ g ¥ il Nil
(iv) Concentration of credit risk ansing from the swaps il Nil
(v} The fair value of the swap book Nil Nil
Note: There are no decivative tansactions during the year/ previous year
b.  Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(9 Notional prineipal amount of exchange traded TR derivatives nadertaken during Nl Bl
the year (instriment wisc) ;
(i) Notional prinrcipal amount of exchange teaded TR desivatives outstanding as on Nil Nl 3
end of year (instrument-wisc) =
(iif) Notional principal amount of exchange: traded IR derivatives outstanding ane not Nil Nl
"highly effective” {instmment-wise)
(i) Marl-to-matket value of exchange traded IR derivatives ouistanding, and not Nil Nl e
"highly effective" finstrument-wise)
Mote: These are no derivative mansactions during the year/ previous year | —
¢.  Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives - Qualitative Disclasure - not applicable
d. Disclagures on risk exposure itt derivatives - quantitative disclosure
Particulars Curreney Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives
() Denvatives Notional Prncipal Amount} Nib N
(1) Marked o market positions [1] [ Nd
{a) Asscts (+) e Nl Nl :
(b} Liability (- Nil Nl —
(iii) Credit exposure (2] Nl Nil =
Nil Nil !

(iv) Unhedped exposures
Note: There are 1o derivative transactions dusing the yeac/ previous year




ART Housing Finunce (India) Limited

Swmmary of significant accounting poticies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(i VY atmmonnts w0 wvgees, aokess obhorwise sbeted)

by,

Exposurc to Capital Market
Particulars

(i) dereet mvestagat i equity shages, comvertible Bonds, convertible debentres and
units of cquity origated mual funds the corpus of wineh 15 not exclusively invested
n corporate debr;

(1) advances agams¢ shares 7 bonds/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis
1o indlividuals for investmentsn shares (ncluding TPOs/ 1E50OPs), convertible bonds,
comvertible debentures, sod units of equay-oriented mutual funds,

Giiiy advances for any other puiposes where shares or convertible bonds or
converible debentures or units of equity oriertted mutual funds are taken as primary
SeCuTly;

{rv} advances for any other purposes 10 the extent secured by dhe collaeral seeunity of
shares e convertible bonds or convertible debenures or uaits of squity oziented
muwal funds ie. whese the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
comvertible debentires £ uaits of cquity oneared muiat funds 'does not fally cover

the advances;

fv) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and puaraniees ssued on behalf
of stackbrokers avd markee makers;

fvi) loans sanclioned o comporates agamst the security of shases / bonds /
w uther scouritics or on clean basts [or meeling promotes’s contribution

debeoures
to the squity of new companics i anticipateon of rsing resoueces,

fwii) bradge loans o companies apainst cxpeered cquaty Rows / issues;
(vini) Al exposures to Venture Capital Puads (hoth eegistered and unepistered)

Total exposure to Capital Marlet

Details of Financing of parent company products

Details of Single Borrower Limit (S§GL) / Group Borrower Limit (GRL) cxceeded by the HFC

Other disclosures
Registration obtained from other linancial sector repulators

Disclosure of Penaltics imposed by NHB aud other regulatars

i) Details of peoalty levied by Navona! housing bank
W) Adverse comments by (he National housing bank on seulatory campliances
i) Percentage of owisanding loans geanted aganst eollateral of gold jewellery ko

total outstanding assets

Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migeation of rating during the year

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Ml Nit
Nil Nil
Nit Nil
il Nil
Wit Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

None

None

None

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nil Nil
Ni) Nil
Nil Nil

Duning the year, CARE has assigned upgeaded rung
af'A" from cadlier rting of “A-", The rating of'A'
assigned by CARE is not accepted by the Company.




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the veir ended 31 March 2019

(A1 camosints in repees, andess othervise stared)

d.  Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies’ showat under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

Particularg

1. Provisions for depreciation on investment
2. Provision made towards income-tax
3. Provision towards sub standaed, doubtful aod loss asset
4. Provision for standard assets fwith detals ke teaser Joan, CRE, CRI-RT cIc.)
Teaser loans
CRE
CRE -
Other standard asscts
5. Other provision and contingencics (with details)
Gratuity, compensated absences
Employee benefits

£

Provision for expenses

¢ Brealtup of loan and advances and provisions thereon

For the vear ended
M March 2019

For the yeur ended
31 March 2018

Wil
57,967,908
421,795

Nil
(147,383
(1,845,781)
(351,407)

1,950,790
2700918
13,406,201

Nt
32,041,526
Nl

NI
846,029
3,564,200
70304273

30
17,545,667
ALBOH2K81T

Particulars Housing louns Non-Housing loans
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 Murch 2008

Standard asscts

4) Total outstanding amount 4,377,465,297 2994,141,195 1,203,223, 906 IRASR X

B) Provisions made 13,212,427 11,273,350 7,255,454 11,517,102
Sub-ptandard asscrs

) Total outstanding amount 2,811,960

b} Provisions made an,7e5 -
Doulrtful assers — Catcgory-1

#) Total outstanding amount Nl Nil Nil Nl

b) Provisions made Nil N Nit Nl
Doubtful assets — Category-IT

1) Totat outstanding amount Nil N Nit Nt

b} Provisions made Nil Ny Nl Na
Doubtfirl asscts — Catepgory-111

2) ‘Total owtstanding amount N Nil Wil Nl

b) Provisions made N Nil A Nit
Loss assets

a) Totwl outstanding amount il Nt Nt Nit

b) Provisions made Nl Nil Nil N
Total

a4 Total putstanding amount 4,380,277,263 2,994,141,195 1,203,223,906 1,606,179,612

b) Provisions made 13,634,222 14,273,356 7,230,454 14,517,102
Concentration of public deposits, advances, exposurcs and NPAs

f. Concentration of public deposits (for public deposit taking/holding HFCs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Total deposits of twenty largest depositors

Percentage of deposits of twenty lasgest depositors to total deposits of the HIKC

g.  Concentration of loans and advances
Particulars

Total loans and advances to twenty laggest borwowers

H

DPercentage of loans and advances to twenty lasgest horrowers o toial advances uf the

(Thic sperce bas been itentinmilly foft Band )

Nat appheable
Mot applicable

As at
31 March 2019

Not applicable
Not appleable

As at
31 Masch 2018

358,835,030
990,

\Z et
\3&[}{3\1‘_\.’5

LANG (90 5
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ART Housing Finance (Indin) Limized

Summury of significant accounting policies and vther explanatory information to the {financial stawements for the year ended 31 March 2019

{ A aamatents it vpegs, sisleas abfeerwise stated}

T,

n.

Concentratdon of all Exposure (including off-hatance sheet exposure)

Particuturs

Total exposure w twenty largest borrowers / customers
Percennge of exposures v avemy lugest boseoveess / customess fo ol exposure of

the HEC an Dorrowers/ customers

Concengration of NPAs
Particulars

Total exposure to wp en NPA accounts

Sector-wise NI'As - Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector

Particulars

AL Housing loans:
1, Indwiduals
2. Buidders/Project loans
3. Compornates
& Ohthers (specirfy)
B. Non-Housing loans:
1. tndividuals
2. Builders/ Project loans
3 Comporates
4. Others (specify)

Mavement of NPAs
Particulars

(1) Neo NPAs to oet advances (o)
1) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a} Openmg balanee
b} Addsnons during the year
c} Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance
(1) Movement of net NPAs
2) Opeaing balance
b) Addinions durmyg the year
¢} Reduetons dueng rhe year
) Closmg balanee
V) Movement of provisions (or NI'As {excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance
b) Provisions made dusing the year
¢} Wte-off/write-back of excess provisions

) Closing balance

Querseas assets
Particulars

Nune

Off-halance sheer SPVs sponsered (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Nornns)
Pastigulars

None

Customers complaints
Pacticulirs

1) No. of complunts pending ar the begimnmg of the year
b) No. aof complasnes veceived during the year
¢} No. of complaints redressed during the year

dj No. of compluint pending at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
558,855,434 1,305,099,541
9.00% 28.37%
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
TR11,060 T
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2058
0.068% Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nl
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
0.04% 0.00%
- 5,991,334
5,018,340 3,078,023
2,206,374 9,069,357
2,811,966 -
- 5,092,634
3,258,805 2616320
868,634 7,708,954
2,390,171 .
- 898,700
1,759,535 461,703
1,337,10 1,360,403
421,795 -
As at As an
31 March 2019 31 March 2048
Nil Nil
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nit Nil
Asgat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nit Nil
130 54
128 54
2 Nil




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informaution to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AN aniountc in rapees, nntass orherwise stetled)

3 Tnfoonation as required to be fuoished as per seetion 22 of the Micro, Small and Medinm Fntemrises Development (MSMETY) Act, 2006 for the year snded
31 Mareh 2019 is given below. This infonnation has been detesmined o the extent such parties have been identified on the bagis of information available with the

Company.
31 Murch 2019 31 Muarch 2018

i) Principal amount and intesest due thereon resmainiag unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMIED Act,
2006:

Prncipal 493,860

Interest .
i} The amount of intecest paid by the buyer in teans of sectioni6, of the MSMLED Act, 2006 alung with the
amounts of the payment made o the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,
iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the penod of delay in making payment {which have been paid -
but beyond the appointed day ducing the yeat) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act,
2006.
1) The amount of interest accened and remaining unpaid at the end of eack accounting year.
¥) The amount of furser inteeest semaining due and payable even in the succeeding yeass, untit such date when
the interest dues as above are acually paid o the small enterprise for the pupose of disallowance as a
deducrible expenditare undee section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

32 Corporate social responsibility expenses
Gross amount required to be speat by the Company dusing the year is Z 356,933 (previous vear: 2 ail).
Amount speat duning the year on eorporate social responsibility: T 375,000 {provious year: T nil),
Particutars Year In cagh Yet ta be paid in cash Total

31 March 2014

31 March 2018 -

31 March 2019 375000 . 3T
31 March 2018 - .

Construction /aequisition of any asset

On purposes other than above

33 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary o make theso in fine with that of the current year.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information refersed 10 19 our report of even date.

Por and un hehalf of the Board of Dircetors of
ART Huusing Finance (Indin) Linsited

For Walker Chandiok & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registriibon No..00]329N

galub\ A"\.d{ﬁ“\

pet Arun Tandon

Pankaj Jzin
aAien] Clwer

Ritidea Sati

Company Seeretary
Membershup Mo, ACS 2016

Pathier

Membe rsh)y av -51F233

> Raj Vikagh Verm. o «uﬁ»
) Drceetor st Dicdten and

secudgd Ofleer

TN 003546341 fi
TN 05285114

Place ;: Gumgmm
Date : 6 May 2019




Walker Chandiok & Associates

t-41 Connaught Circus
Mew Delhi 110001
India

T +91 114278 7070
F 9111 4278 7071

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ART Housing Finance (India)
Limited {‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as ‘the Group’), which comprise the Consolidated Baiance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and othet explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(*Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended), of the consolidated state of affairs
(consolidated financial position) of the Group as at 31 March 2019, their consolidated profit and their

consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilitics under those standagds are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We ate independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('TCAD) together with the cthical requitements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Fthics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Associates

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the membets of ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(cont’d)

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the other information. Other information
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditot’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion theteon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenally inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicabie as no other information is obtained at the

date of this auditor’s report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Boatd of Ditectots is tesponsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position), consolidated profit or loss and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended). The respective Board of Directors/management of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safepuarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and ate free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the counsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis ol accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.




Walker Chandiok & Associates

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(cont’d)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuranice about whether the consolidated financial statements 25 a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ [dentfy and assess the risks of matertal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures tesponsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

contrel.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for explaining our opinion on whether the holding company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating elfectiveness of such controls,

* Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matesial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conciude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue

as a going concertl.

o livaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial staterments,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the undetlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10, We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.




Walker Chandiok & Associates

Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(cont’d)

11. We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

12. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Holding Company has
paid remuneration to its ditectors duting the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Ifurther, we report that the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the subsidiary company since the subsidiary company
is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act.

13. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial

statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appeats from our examination of those

books;

¢) the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report ace in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statetnents comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014(as

amended);

¢) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
its subsidiary company and taken on record by the Board of Ditectors of the Holding Company and
subsidiary company respectively, none of the directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on
31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure
I’y and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i there were no pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 which would impact the consolidated

financial position of the Group;




Walker Chandiok & Associates

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of ART Housing Finance
{(India) Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(cont’d)

i, the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2019,

iii.  there were no amounts which were tequited to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company during the year ended
31 March 2019; and

v.  the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the petiod from 8 Novembet 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant
to these consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Ne.: 001329N

Aﬁﬂ)&\_ 4 andon

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

Place: New Delhi
Date: 06 May 2019




Walker Chandiok & Associates

Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of ART
Housing Finance (India) Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019
Annexure 1

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

ln conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited (‘the Holding Company’), as at and for the year ended 31 Match 2019, we have
audited the intetnal financial controls over financial reporting (‘IFCoFR’) of the Holding

Company, as at that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directots of the Holding Company ate tesponsible for establishing and
maintaming internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company consideting the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note of Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Repotting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the company’s business, including adhetence to the company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
mformation, as requited under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid, based on out audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requitetnents and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were
established and maintained and if such controls opetated effectively in all material respects.

Out audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an
understanding of IFColR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ercor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.




Walker Chandiok & Associates

Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of ART
Housing Finance (India) Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external putposes
in accordance with genetally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoIR include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accutately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepatation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authotisations of management and ditectors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance tegatding prevention or timely detection of unauthotised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intetnal Financial Controls over Financial Repotting

Because of the inhetent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or mmpropet
management override of controls, material misstatements due to ertor or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future petiods are subject
to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies ot procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company have in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting ctitetia established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note

issued by the ICAL

For Walker Chandiok & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001329N

Ag—\uu\ 5{5«\ 0{0"

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

Place: New Delhi
Date: 6 May 2019




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

(A anmonnisc in ropees, nnless otherwive stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders’ funds
Share capiral 3 3,850,000,000 3,750,000,000
Reserves and surplus 4 161,327 018 3,675,501
4,011,321,918 3,753,675,501
Non-cutrent liabilitics
Long-term borrowings 5 1,001,978,560 425,437,606
Otirer long-term labilitics 7,111,860 7,300,541
Long-term provisions 7 19,743,039 20,484,502
1,028,833,459 453,222,649
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 865,219,407 108,485,808
Orther currene Habilities 4 265,584 547 559,852,186
Short-term provisions 10 3,627,133 3,277,193
1,134,431,087 671,615,277
TOTAL 6,174,586,464 4,878,513,427
ASSETS
Non-currem assets
Property, plant and cquipment
Tangible assers 11 76,616,966 81,460,414
Tntangible asscts 11 12,737,581 9,776,563
Deferred tx assets (net) i2 516,476 2,603,200
Long-tesm loans and advances 13 5,169.604,543 4,159,400,778
5,259,475,566 4,253,240,955
Current assets
Courrent investments 4 222,500,000 -
Cash and bank balances 15 120,182,042 115,412,856
Short-term loans and advances 16 512,145,065 485,597,006
Other current assets 17 60,283,791 24.262,610
915,110,898 625,272,472
TOTAL 6,174,586,464 4,878,513,427

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated fnancial statements.

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheot refeered te in our repost of even date.

lior Walker Chandiok 8 Associates

Chartpred Agcountants
Fym's hearﬁf'fah'ovg M0 00[229A

Ag»um J( amdon

Arun Tandon
Pariner

M emberdhsp Nv. 1513273

itika Sati
Compaoy Sceretary
Membership No. ACS 24016

/ S
Raj ¥ikash Verma

Direetor
Place : Gurugram 121N 0003546341

Date : 6 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Pankaj Jain
A Fingncipl-tfficer

A%

B




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2019

(A amainis in ripoes, infoss atherwise stuted)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31 Magch 2019 31 March 2018

Revenue
Revenue from operations 18 870,619,888 424,046,683
Other income 19 42,072,538 76,635,484
Total revenue 912,692,426 501,282,167
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 305,751,571 197,890,975
Finance costs 21 237,031,121 13,868,951
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11 28,824,130 18,319,298
Other expenses 22 123,384,554 117,613,379
Total expenses 694,991,376 347,692,603
Profit before tax 217,701,050 153,589,564
Tax expense

- Cutrent tax 57,967,908 32,941,526

- Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement - (24,448,570

- Defetred tax 2,086,724 38,761,838
Profit after tax 157,646,418 106,334,770
Earnings per share 23

- Basic 0.41 0,37

- Diluted 0.41 G.37

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our teport of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Associates

Charter c_d Accountants
Fivm Reglctvalon No1061329N

A‘?\M f andhon

Acun Tandon

Parmer

MNemberslup Mo: 517273

Place : Gurugram
Date : 6 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

/\ Panlkaj Jain

hief Firancial Cficer

Ritika Sati :
Company Secretaty

Membership No. ACS 24016

/7/7

ﬁ]\hkaah Verma

Director
DIN 0003546341

'\

\w
Awmd Hali

I\legmg Director and
Chicl Executive Officer
DIN 05285114




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Congolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 Marcl 2019

(= U atmasentn i vgpees, sodens atherise sdeted)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activitics:

Profit belore (ax 217,701,050 153,589,564

Adjustments for;

Depreciation and amorisation expense 28,824,130 18,319,298

Loss on sale of propeny, plant and equipment 506,731 22,802

Iinance costs 257,051,121 13,868,051

Fixeess liability written back (1,532,224) (7,646,439

Gain on meial fund redemption {19,026,348) (30,072,466)
18460718

General provision for sendasd assets

General provision for standard assets wiitten back (2,344,571) -

Foans and advances weitten off 1,158,707 2,6113,234
Provision {or sub-sandard, doubttul and loss assets 421,795 -
462,737,391 169,145,662
Tirect taxes (paid)/adjusted (50,824,608) 32,941,526
Operating profit before working capital changes 411,907,783 202,087,188
Adjustments for:
Loans dishursed {net) (1,045,445,017) {3,625,665,168)
(Inerease} in other loans and advances and other current assets (33,435,302) (64,934,540)
(Mecrease)/ increase in other cureent liabilities and provisions (293,126,938) 397,008,787
Trterest and processing chasges paid (237,295,030 (13,605,133)
{Decrease)/ increase in long-teron Kalbilites (188,681) 2,462,301
Net cash used in operating activitics {1,197,583,194) (3,102,556,465)
Cash flow from investing activitios:

Puarchase of property, plant and cquipment, (27,404,280 (14,188,448)
Proceeds fram disposal of properey, plant and cquipment 45,858 21U K76
Deerease in deposits with banks (425,156) (86,735,790
(Tnvestment in)/ proceeds from redemption of current meeskments, net (2013,473,652) 3072466
Net cash {used in) investing activities (231,347,239) (68,653,896}
Cash flow from financing activities:

Procewds [rom issuance of share capital TO0,00,000 2,400,000,000
Proceeds from long teom bonewings 287,568,954 436,222 000
Repayment of long rerm borrowings (1,51 LO2ZB,Q00) (3,284,304)
Proceeds fram shon term borrowings, net 756,733,509 138,485,898
Net cash generated frm fnancing activitics £,433,274,463 3,141,423,504

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents 4,344,030 (29,780,857}
Cash and cash equivalents ar the beginning of the year 469,71 30,256,567
Cash and eash equivalents 2t (he end of the year 4,813,740 469,711}

4,344,030 (29,786,857)

“This 35 the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement selerred o in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Associates Faw anct on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

Clhartered Accountants
Y

RedTctvahon A0 1O013 298
fan an o

ART Affordable Housing Finance (India)} Limited

Pankuj Jait

Ritilea Sati
“hief FinanciafiO fficer :\\

per Arun Tandon

Partner Company Scerelary
° Jompany Scerelary
Memb WNMP Ne 5’ }2?3 Mombership No. ACS 24016 -
e i
5 Raj Vikash Verma - é LATFind Hﬂl?‘“’
Divector ) Mm,ﬂéiﬂg Ditrectos and

N D0N3546341 CRidf Fxecunive Offeer

Place: Guragrum
DIN 65285114

Date : 6 May 2019




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2019

L

Company overvicw

ART Housing Finance (Tndia) Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated or 16 july 2013 with its registered office in
New Delbi The Company is a subsidiary of ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Limited.

The Holding Company is registered with the National Housing Bank (NFIB) under scction 29A of the National Mousing
Bank Act, 1987, "T'he main objects of the Holding Company, iwer afia, 2re to carry out the business of providing long: term
finance to individuals, companics, cosporations, socictics or association of persons for puschase/construction/ repair and

renovation of new/ existing flats/ houses for residential purposes and provide property related services.

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial stztements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its undermentioned

subsidiary (heseinafier referred as the 'Group?),
i) ART Distribution (1) Private Timited, India 100% subsidiary with ¢ffect From 11 August 2015

The consolidared financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the notified Accounting Standard (AS-21) oo
‘consolidated financial stmement” notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act’) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accovnts) Rules, 2014 {as amended). The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the following basis,

1 Consolidated fnancial statement normally incledes Consolidaced Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profic and Loss,

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information that
ements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format

form an integral past thereof, ‘The consolidated financiaj st
as adapted by the Folding Company (or its standalone financial starements.

i) The consolidated financial Statements include the financial statements of the Tolding Company and its undermentioned

subsidiary which is more than 50 percent owned or controlled as at the year end.

ai) ‘The consolidated financial staterients have been combined on a line by line basis by adding the baok values of like items
of assets, liabilitics, income and expenses after eliminating intra-proup balances/ transactions and resulting untealised profits
in full. The amounts shawn in respeet of reserves comprise the amount of the relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of

the Holding Company and its share in the relevant reserves of the entity £o be consolidated.

1 notes involving items which are

iv) Summary of significant accounting policics and othee explanatory information, repres
riglity for the purpose is assessed in relation to the informarion

considered material and are accordingly duly disclosed. Mate
contained in the consolidated financial stazements. Hurther, additional statutory information disclosed in separate fimancial
statements of the subsidiary and/or a parent having no bearing on the true and Fair view of the consolidated financial

statements s not been disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,

v) The financial statemenss of the entities used for the puepose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as of the
Tolding Company.

vii As per Schedule 1T o the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act), read with applicable Accounting Standard and General
Cirewlar 39/2014 dated 14 October 2014, the disclosures relevant to the consolidated fmancial statements have been
disclosed. Further, additional staturory information disclosed in separate financial sratements of the subsidinries having no
bearing on the true and fair view of the consolidated financial starements is nor disclosed in these conselidated finaneial

stiatciments,
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3

3.1

b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on an acerual basis, in accordance with
the pencraily accepred accounting principles in Tndia and to comply with the Accounting Srandards preseribed in the
Companies {(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 fssued by the Central Government in exercise of the power conferred ander
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the 'Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
These consolidated tinancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis in accordance with the generally aceepted accounting principles in India. The accounting policies have been

consistently applied by the Group.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated (inancial statements in conformity with the principles generally accepted in Tndia requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the teported amounrs of agsets and liabilitics and the disclosure
of contingent liabititics on the date of consolidated financial statermnents and the seported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actusl results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting cstimates is

recognised in the cureent and furare periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that ceonomic benefits will fow to the Group and the revenue can be
relinbly measured.

i, Interest income/ fees on housing and other loans given are recognised on accraal basis, except in case of interest on non-
performing assets and charges for delayed payments and chegue bouncing, if any, which are recognised only when realised.

ii. Loan origination fncome Le. processing fees and other charges collected upfiont, are recopnised at the inception of the
loan. Balance processing fee received at the time of disharsement is recopnised as income at the time of disbursement,

iii. Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount

outstanding and the rate applicable.
iv. Dividend income is recognived when the Molding Company’s tight to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Classification and provisioning of loan portfolio

(i) Loans and other credit facilities are classifed as standard, sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets in accordance with the
extant [Mousing Finance Companies, (N[TH) Dirccrions, 2010, as amended from time to ime.

(i) Loans are provided for as per the management’s estimates, subject o the minimum provision required as per the extant

Housing Finance Companies, (NFT8Y Directions, 2010, as amended from time to time.
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d) Investments

£

[nvestments that are readily sealisable and intended o be held oz not more than a year are classificd as current investiments.
Al other investments are classified as long-terns investments.

Current investments are carried at Tower of cost or Faie value determined on an individual investment basis.

Long-term investments are carvied at cost. Hlowever, provision for diminurion i value is made to recopnise a decline, other

than emporary, fa the value of the Jong-term investments.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible

Property, plant and cquipment (PPLY {gross block) are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impaizment
(it any). Cost comprises the puschase price and any atzributable cost of bringing the assct to its working condition for its
intended vse, Capital expenditure incurred on rented properties is classificd as ‘easchold improvements’ under P,

Intangible

Software which is not integral part of the hardware is cassificd as intangibles and 15 stated ar cost less accumulated
amortisation. Lhese are recognived as assets if it is probable that future economic benefits atteibutable to such assets will Alow

to the Group and the cost of the assets can be eeliably measured.

Depreciation and amortisadon

Diepreciation on tangible assets {s provided o straight line method at the rates and in the manner presceibed in Schedule 1T to
the Act.

The intanpible asscrs are being amortised over the useful life, as determined by the management.

1l life oof the assets or the period of lease, whichever is

Teaschold improvements have been amorntised over the estimated use

lower.

Leases

Operating feases:

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Staternent of Profit and Toss on a straight line

basis over the peried of the lease.

mployee benefits
Wages, salarics and bonus/ variabie pay are acerued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees

of the Group.

The Group has two post employment plans i operation vix, Grataity and Provident fand.

Provident fond
Provident fund beaefit is a defined contribution plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into Funds established

under Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Acr, 1952, The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. 1'he contributions recognised in respect of
defined contribution plans are expensed as and when they acerue, Liabilities and assers may be recognised i underpayment or
prepayment has oecurred and are incleded in currene linbilities or current assets, respectively, as they are normally of a short

term pature.
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Gratnidty

Gracuity 1 2 post employment bencefit and is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liability zecognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of grawity is the present vale of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date less the
fair value of plany assets, together with adjustments For unsecognised actuarial gains or losses. The defined benefit obligation is
caleulated at the hatance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation by an independent actuaty using projected anit credir
method. Actvarial gain or loss arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the

consofidated statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gain or loss arise.

Other shart-torm benefits
Expense in sespect of other shost-term benefits s recognised on the basis of amount paid ot payable for the perod during

which services are rendered by the employees.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred fax,

Current income-tax is defermined as higher of the amount of tax payable caleulated at the tax rates applicable to the relevant
assessment year on the assessable income of the respective year or tax payable on ook profit computed in accordance with

the provisions of seetfon 115)B of the Tncome-tax Act, 1961,

Deferred income-tax reflects the impact of current period tming differences between taxable income and accounting income
for the year and reversal of fiming differences of carlier years. Deferred tx is measured based on the tax rates and tas laws
enacted or substantively enacted ar the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient fatare taxable income will be available apainst which such deferred tax assets can be
realized, I case of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred rax assets are recognised only to the extent
there is virtual cermainty supported by convincing evidenee that sufficient farure taxable income will be available against which

such losses can be set off,

Further, deferred rax assct appearing i books is reviewed at cach reporting dare and is written down to the extent it is not
certain thar the Group will pay taxes on future incomes against which such deferred tax assct may be adjusted.

Minimum Alernate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. ‘The Flodding
Company recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Tolding
Company will pay notmal income-tax during the specified pesiod, i.c., the period for which MAT Credie is allowed o he
carried forward, Tn the year in which the Tolding Company recognises MAT Credit 28 an asset, the said asset is created by
way of credit to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and shown as “MAT Credit Fntitlement.”

The Tlolding Company reviews the “MAT Credie Entitloment” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asser to the
IS paty f B

extent the Holding Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of signilicant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2019

1)

Impairment of asscts

The Group on an annual basis makes an assessment of any indicator that may lead to fmpairment of assets, f any such

indicarion exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. Tf such recoverable amount is less than the

carrying amount, then the carrying amount s reduced 1o its recoverable amount, The reduction is treated as a impairment
loss and s charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 17 at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no Jonger exists, the recoverable amount s reassessed and the asser is reflected ac the

recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

Eamings per share

Basic carnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss fog the year attributable to equity sharehelders by the
weighted avesage number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of caleulating dilured carnings per share, the net profit or doss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential

cquity shares, except where the resules would be and-dilutive,

Contingent liabilities and provisions

The Group makes a provision when thete is a present obligation as a cesult of a past event where the outflow of ceonamic
resources 18 probable and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made,

A disclosure is made for a contingent ability when these s a:

i) possible obligation, the existence of which will be confirmed by the oceurrence/non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events, not fally within the control of the Group; or

i) present obligation, where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconoimic benefits will be required to
seetle the obligation; or '

iif) present obligation, where a reliable estimate cannot e made.

Where there is a present obligation in respeet of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or

disclosure is made.

Scgment reporting
The Group operates in a single reportable segment ie. lending, which have similar risks and rerars for the purpose of
Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting” notified under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 {as

amended). The Group operates in a single geographical segment ic. domestic.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash anct cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or

less.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs, which are dircetly atrflsutable to the acquisition/ construction of PPE, il the time such asscls are ready for
intended use, are capitalized as part of the cost of the assets. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year
in which they arc incurred. Brokerage costs diseetly attributable to a borrowing are expensed over the tenure of the

horrewing,
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P} Properties acquired under Securitisation and Reconsteuction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security
Interest Act, 2002 (cthe 'SARFAESI Act').
The assets acquired by the Group under the SARIFATST Act, 2002 are classified as 'Stock of acquited propertics' and are

vatued at net realisable value or outstanding ducs, whichever is lower.

q)  Share based payments
In case of stock option plan, measurement and disclosure of the employee shate-based payment plans is done in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Accounting for limployee Share-based Payments, issued by the Tnstiture of Chartesed

Accountants of India as applicable for equity-scttled share based payments.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using the intrinsic value method and recopnised, together with a

corresponding increase in the “Stock eptions oulstanding account™ in reserves. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-

settled transactions at cach reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Holding Company’s best estimate of the mumber of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, The expense or credit
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense

recognised as at the begioning and end of that period and is recoganised in employee beacfits expense,

{This space bas heew funtewtionally lefl blank)
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£ anponnfs i rnpees, by offinsse stated)

3 Shre capital

As ac 3 March 2019 As ar M March 2018
Nuniber Amount Number Artionunt
Autlhrorised share capital
Bauity shares of Rs. 1 eacls 1OBGB0,000 TO0BELI0,000 400,000,000 £,060,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capical
ety shaves of s, 10 cach 385,000,000 3 850,000,000 373,000 60 3,750 080,000

W Terms/ rights attached 1o equity shares

hare. I the event of tiquidation
e Phe distrilution will be in

entitled 1o oae vote per
v osettdement of alt the hat

shaves Taving a par vaice of Rx, 10 per sh “ach holder of equ

i be entitled to receive romadning resels

The Holding Company has only one class of cquty
ol the Tolding Company, holders of coquity share
propoztion (o (he mumber of cyuity shares beld by the sharelolders.

ol the Haolding Cony

1y Reconcitiation of equity shares owtstanding at the begineing and end of the repoerting pesiod

As at 31 March 2040 As at 31 March 2018
MNumber Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the veas 375,000,000 3,750,000, 100,000 G0 £OO0.080.000
Add: Shares issued during the year 10,000,000 D0 273,008,000 2,750,000,000
Shares outstanding at the end of (he year 385,000,000 3,850,000,000 315,000,060 3,750,000,0600
¢} Details of shares held by the Parent of the TEolding Company *
As at 31 Macch 2019 As at 31 March 2048
Murmber of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
held held

ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Lansted 385,600,000 105iLO0, 37,999,900 99,99

* e per the seconds of the Hokling Compiny, Sncheding 720 segister of harehnblors] memders aud wiler dechnitons, §f any, received finw dhetrebatdees vagording bewefivil interest, the obure shasehohing represents buih

Jigeed e Disieficzead ownerihipy of shurey.

a4y Detzils of sharcholdess holding more than 3% of equity share capital of the Holding Company *

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 Mazch 218
Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
held feld
AR Business and Comsymer Fieance {(ndia) Privare Limited 3HA,000,000 10N, 374999900 99,9975

* s per the vecores of the Halling Cunpany, includinn its register of sharehalders{ messfrs atid viber dectivations, §f axy, seecived fions sharehafders segaveling beneliciad interest, te ahore shurchalkiing represents hoth

Jegeid ond hetighiczead mwsiership of haees.
¢} Taiployee Stock Oplion Schemes (ES08)

AR Thousing Finance {Tndia) Timited litd i the previous year anmovnced and adopted FSOS schemes for i employees whercin each option represents one equity share of the
Helding, Company. Nomination and Remuneration Comittee constitated by the Board of Divectors administers each of the plans.

“the sharchalders of the TTolding Conpang at their meeting dated 29 May 2017 approved the "XCAIFL ESOP - MAY2007 scheme consisting of 2300600 stock optons representing
2500000 fully paied up equaty shares of Rs 10 cach of the Company 0 be issaed i one or more tranches to cligible cmployees of the Helding Company. The Nomiian and
Remuneration Committee constisuzed by 1he Board of Dircetors of the Holding Company has, at its meedng held an dated 29 May 2017, 3 November 2007 and 8 December 2017,
pranied, following the intrinsic method of accouating as is preseribed o the Guidanee Note sssued by the Tnstitute of Chartered Aecowntants of Tndia on Aczouting for Employees
Share Based Payments (“the Guidelines™}. However, the Holdiog Company has sncrensed the overalt imit of stock sptions up 1o 3,800,000 under the said scheme on vecommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration Committecs and approval of share holders ride theie general mectng held on 4 April 2018, As the options have heen granted at mtrinsic value, there is
no emplovee stock compensation expense un accouat of the same. These vptions vest wigh effeet fronz the fies vesting date i.e. 20 May 2019, whereby the options vest on each vesting

date as pee the vesting schedule provided i the Scheme.
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LAl cinmnts v pipees, widess atberwive sifod)

Details related o BEmplayee Stock Option Schemes (E80S) of the HoldingCompany:

Trarticufars

AFFL 805 - MAY'2017

Pxercise price

0]

WL,

face vahie of a share of the Holding Company a2 on date of

The exereise price shail be such price as determined by the Board of Divectars from time 1o time, being not less than the

Ou expiry of one year- % of upions pranied

Vesting conditions
- 20 of optivas graated

Omeexpuy of three year- 20% of options pranted
Os expiry of four years 3% o options granted

On expiry of five year- 30% of aptions granted

rmy of optiong graated 5 vears from the date of vesting

Maxinmam

Continuedd employimeni at the vesting date

vy {lxerese period The o e perind shall be determined by the Board of Dircctars s consortinm with dhe guidity event.

(viy | Pricsg Formula Caleulation is based on (ir value methad

vy Option movement during the year (For eacls 11808):
Particulars Yer the yeur ended For the year ended

31 Macch 201% 3 March 2018
Numbers of options outstanding at the beginmng of the year 2,105,001 -
Number of options granted during thwe year 2.093,000 2,105,000
Number of options focfeited fapsed duzing ihe year {308,060
Number of options vested during the year -
Number of options exctcised during the y - -
Number of g as aresul of exeecise of options -
Money L ise of options (TNRY, 5T scherme is smplemented direetly by the Holdig Company - -
Number of aptions outstandioge at the vid of dhe year 1,300,000 2105000
Number ol stock aisable at the end of the
Grant date: Weighted avesage remaining contractual life
(in days)
31 Masch 2019 31 March 2018

20 May 2017 580 2435
3 November 2017 738 1,103
26 Apwil 2018 913
24 September 2008 1,64 -
12 Mareh 2019 1,233 -

(¥ii) Pro-farma accounting, for employee stock opnons:

“Fhe Tholding Company apphies imrinsic vafue based method of accounting for dege
applied using; the Girvalue approach, the Tloldmg Company's sct tncome and basic and diluted ¢

s |

mndicated Lelow:

Particulars

Prolitalier tax (as seported)

Adel: Seovk Based employee compensation expense debited to the Consolidared Statement of Profic and Toss
Less: Stock based employee compe
Adjusted pro-forma profa

aling axprease based os fair vakie

Basic LS

- As seporied

- P'ro-forma

Ditured 19

- Ag reported

- Pre-forma
{ix)  The fr value of options was estimated on the dae ol grant wsing the Blaek-Scholes mode] with die following sipnilicant assumptions

Particalars

Risk free muerest e (in ")

pected life fn yeprs)

Volauhty i %)

Prividend yield (in *3)

Waphted averape exercise price

Weighted avermge fai value of stock option

sinings compensation cost (o s stock-based compensation plan. Had the
s reported woudd bave been reduced o the pro-forma amounnts as

For the year ended
M March 2019

compersation cost been

For the year ended
31 March 2018

157 640,118 HIB 33770
92149317 5,245,436
144,427,101 101,089,554
[ER ] .37

n.39 0.35

{41 0.7

LIRS .35

Tfor the year ended
3 March 2019

For the year ended
3 Muzch 2018

786"
Syears
1571"a
{100
0
334

7.86%
5 years
14.13%
0.00%
1600
338

indlicative of esercise padems thatmay vecur. The expeeted voludity reflects the
sssasily be she acimad outeome, Farther, the

ile of the stoek is based on historical dai and cureent expectations and is not nec
¢ over a period sinilar (o the tife of the options i indicative of fuuve wends, which may alse not nec
g 15 and projections provided by the management which are not been opingd by the auditors.

d
assumption (hat the historical volanl
s the huclye

The expre

3, I

valuntion has been conducred bas

g Nosbares have been issued presisnn o contredwatheust payment being received in cash, allotied as Sty pasd up by way of bonus issaes and brought back snice the mcomporation of
he Tluiding Company.
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{7V cimtottnts 0 rapees, sdess athenviie statod)

As a As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Reserves and sumlus
Surplus/({Deficit) as per Consolidated Statement of Profit aud Loss
Opening balance ax a1 the hegining of the year 176027809 {102,659,26%)
Net profit fov the year 157 64001 18 106,331,770
Appropriaion o statutory
ed o stamtory resereg 616,878 9,905,049
eserve nmdes section 36 (1}vi) of Ineometax Aet, 1961 24,619,905 11,372,332
Closing; balance as ar the ead of the year 108,506,855 (17,602,780)
Stalutory reserve (As per the Scction 290 of the National Housing Rank Act, 1987) read wilh
section 36 (1) {vii)) of Incomc-tax Act, 1961
Opesng balanee as at the begioning of the year 21278281 -
Add sterred from (he consolidated statement of profic and lss 31,530,743 21,278,281
Tulised doring the vear - -
g batance as ac the end of the year 32815064 21,274,281
161,321,918 3,675,501

¢ a4 resorve lead and nansfer therein a

Section 29C G of The National Houstog, Bank er, 1987 defines that every honsing foance institution which is a Holding Compan
sum ot less than twenty percent of its net profis every year as disclosed in the statenent of profie and loss before any divideod is declved, For this pupose any special veserve created
tion 36{1) (viil) of Income tax Act 1961, s considered (o be an eligible wansfer. "Fhe Holding Company bas teosfeered an amount of Re. 24619905 {previous
cial reserve i teems of Section 36013 (viil) of the Tncome-tax Act 1961 considered cligible {or special reserve w/s 250 of Natonal Housing Pank Act, 1947,

by the Company under
year - Re. T1LAT 2} to spe

I terms of the requivement of Natonal Housing, Bank’s INTTBY Ciretar No, NTTBND)/DRS/ Pol Cireular.61 /201310 dated 7 April 2011, information on Reserve Pund goder

seetion 3G of the Natonal Housing Bank Sct, 1987 has been farnished nnder note 30711).

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Macch 2018

Lomg-term borrowings

Secured
Term loan
- from Nationat Housmg, Pank L36,886,000
- from hanks : 3145209606
Vs Current matuzities of Jong term borrowings (refer noie 9) {122 302 202} {25978,000)
1,001,978,560 425,437,604
Repayment terms and seensity for the cutstanding Jong-term borrowings {inclucting current matsrities}
From Natioual Housing Bank:
i 3 vepayable in 60 quadtedy wstalments which bad commenced on 3 September 2017,
From Banlks:
Term foan oustansing as a4t 31 March 2019 amountsy te:
1) R 37752406 15 repayable in 16 equal quartedy instahnents afier 3 morteium period of 6 months commencing Gom 31 August 2017,
4l Rs. 9995356 15 repayable in 20 equal qrentesdy instadments after a moratorium period of 24 manths and the fast instadment will be due on 30 June 2017,
i} R, SO0,000,000 15 vepayable i 20 equal quarterly instalments alter 3 moratovium period of 24 months commencing from 31 December 2019,
‘The alorementioned e los A by way of hypotheeation of (he housing loan reccivables with cover of E1Himes w0 1.25 times of the owstanding exposure.
The interest rate fur the alorementioned wrm foans are linked to the Marginal Cost of Fond Based Lending Rate (MCLR) of the vespeetive lenders,
As at As at
31 March 2019 3 March 2018
(rber long-term dabilities
Lease cqualisation reserve 4,367 490
Advance from enstomiers 4,354,140 2733051
7,111,860 7,300,54¢
Long-teem provisions
Provisun {or emplovee beoefits {refer note "' below) 2484,343 B64,28101
i7.258494 19,520,222

Geneaal provisions (owards stiandaed as

frefer note 30 VIIT {e)}
19,743,039 20,484,502
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(AU it it vupoes, ndess wibervise stated)

a)

Employee henefits

The Group i following tie notities Accounting Standard 15 {Reviscel 2008) ‘Lamployee Benefiss’ and using Projected Unit Credit Method and other assamptions as per the industey.

Fratuity (funded)

() Chaages in present value of the defined benefit obligations:
Present value of obligativn as al the begioning of the year

Inrerest cost

Current serviee cost
Benelits paid

Actuarnal gain on ohligations

Present vadue of obligation as at the end of the year

(i1} Changes in fuir value of plan asset:

Fatr value of plan assets as at the begmning of the year
Actual vewrn on plan assets

Comnbutions

Beneliss paid

Fair value of plan nssets as al the end of the year

(iif) Amaunt of olligation recoguised in Consalidated Balance Sheet:
Present value of the obligation at the end of the year

Fair vahie of plan assets at end of year

et liability recopnised in Consolidated Balance Sheet

Nom-ctrrent

Current

(iv) Expense recogmised in the consotidated statement of profit and loss:
Cursent service cost

Tnterest cost

Actual return on phn ARACLE

Veruarind Wss/ {gain} om obligatons

Tolal expense recognised in the consolidaled statement of profit and loss

() Assumpiions used
Discount rate

Frture salary ingrease vate
Movality

Vverage past senvice (years)

Averapm age fyears)

Average vemaming working Eves of eoployees {vears)

thrition rate

The di
rate takes

acvount of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant Tactors on long term basis,

As at
31 March 2019

A at
M Mazch 2018

2153015 495,015
550,71 64,801
1,860,400 1,151,145
(72,327 .
15,918 41,934
3,707,717 2,153,015
LI81772
76,234 2821
114,537 1178951
(72327 -
1,205,221 LIRL772
3707217 2,153,015
1,205,221 1,181,772
2,502,496 971,243
FARL3AA 964,280
17,951 6,963

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

1 860,400 1,151,145
150,711 63891
{76,239) (2,4821)

15018 41,934

1,956,790 1,255,149

As at As at

31 Mareh 2019

31 March 2018

.00
10

.25
N0y

TALAM 2006-08 Ultmate TATNL 2006-08 i hisnat

1.2 Y ears
310 Years
2040 Nears

20000

0.8 Years

26 Years
2940 vears
20000%%

count rate is geaerally based upon (he market yickd avadable on the Govermment boads at the reporting date with a e ihas matches tat of the Tiabilitics and (he salary groweh

The preseat value of the defined beaefi obligaion, the fair value of the plan assets and the susphus or deficit in the plan arising on the phn labilities and the plan assets are as Faliows:

Pardeulars 31 Maech 2049
Presem valae of defined beaefit oblipation 3,707,717
Vair value of plan assets 1,205,221

Bleficit in pln assets 3302496

Compensated absences (usfunded)

[0 Reconeibintion of openig and losimg baknces of 1f

Present value of oblignton as ar the beginning of the: vea

Clurrent service cost

Present value of sbligation as st the end of the year

31 March 2018
2153015
L1772

078,243

e present value of the delined benelit obligations:-

(i) Breakup of the expense secognized in the consolxdated statement of profit and loss s as follows:

Carrteint sevice cost
Total expense recogaised in te consolidated sratement of profit asd Joss

Averape past service (vears)

: (yearsy
Average remaining working lives of employees (vears)

31 March 2017
#5045

#9545

3t March 2016
322,983

522945

As at
31 March 2019

31 March 2045
14,537

414,537

As &t
3 March 2018

1295

(t2

038
1138)

FFor the year ended
31 March 201%

For the year ended
31 March 2018

REETED)

(1,225,038)

NA
N3
NA




AT Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant acconnting policies and other explanatory information (o the consalidated Anancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2049

(A camensesety i yupes, ndess wibermive stuted)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Macch 2098
8 Short-term horrowings

Secured
Lesas repayable on demand from hanks: cash reedit faciitios 219,407 8,185,808
Teem loan from banks - 160,000,000
Unscenred
Tater-comporaw deposits 805,000,000 -

805,219,407 108,485,808

Notes:

iy Casy evedits ave seeured by way of hypothecation of the housing loan reeeivables with mininm cover of 125 times of the awtsranding, exposure.

1) Term doan amounting to Rs. 100000000 i repayable in 4 equal quartedy instalments conumencing from 7 June 2018 and i secured by way of bypotheeation of tie housing toan
pawd on 7 March 2019,

receivables with mintamm cover of L1 imes of the ousstanding exposure. The loan was fully

i) Intec-corporate deposits of Rs 865,000,000 i wnsecured whick is cepayable by 31 March 2020,

9 Other corrent liabilities

Coreene maturities of longe term borrowings note 5) 202 23078000
Interest aeerned bt not due an bareawings - 263918
Fraploves related payables 72O 17,545,667
Advanee from customess 178938606 195,183
Sty dues 2640383 2,732,505
Temporary book overdraflt* 76,446,682 478,394 250
Lease equalisation rescrve 1,811,768 #26 890
Ocher aceroed habilities FT 75,728 33,615,383
265,544,547 559,852,186
*temporary book overdeaft of R 76,186,682 fGurcvious year- Bx 478,301,230 ) represents cheques issued towards edisbursements to boreswers but not eneashed as at
3 Mareh 2019,
10 Shori-term provisians

Provigion for cmployee benefits {Refer note 7(a)) 17,954 6943
General provisions towacds sgndard assets 3,187,387 3,270,230
frefer note 29 ¥ (¢)]
Provision for sub standard, doabiinl and loss asseis 421,795
[refer note 29 VHT {2)]

3,627,633 3,271,193

(Thix spee bas bevw inteniionadly lft bink)




AI'T Housing Finanee (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting palicics and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(K smruints fur ragpecs, senlons otbernsse stated)

1z

Deferred tax asser, not
Peferred tax assetarising on account of tming difference on
se eequatisation

s, sub-siandard. doubiful and Joss assets

Brovision (or

Provision for standard ass
Others

Less: Deferved ax liability
Tuning difference on depreciad
Speeial reserve under seetion 3601 af the Inconte-tax Act

singr on aceount of tming difference on:
¢ mortsation of propurty, phant and equipment

Long-term foans and advimees
Considered pomd)
Housing loans
Seeured
- Idrviduats
- Others

Oihers loans
Seeured
- Individuals
« Others
(&

{Unseeurcd and considered pood)

Seeurity depusits
Capital advances

Prepaid income-tax (net of provision for tases and R, TLAD0001 minimum
alternate tax ceedic entilement utilised in e cnrent year)

Minimwim alemate ax eredit entitlement

Current investments
(Vakued at Jower of cost or fair value)

lavesiment i Mutaal Funds (guoted)
HB.279 {provions vear - il vanes of Ry, 30 H00 cacl of Beda Sun Tale Cash Phis - growth - direer plan
ary plan - proweth - diveet plan

- adh units of Re 4,357.1361 cach of Reliance Lagpuid Punsd -1
161,157 {previons year - ml) units of Re. 3761775 of 3CICT Pradential Liguid Frond- growds - divect plan
F2IH) {previous year - mil) units of Rs. 3,67L3769 of HIDEC Li
15,204 {previnns year - nily wmits af B 29218212 of SBI Premic

ol Fund

v Liepaid Hune

Ay
Market value of quoted investments

reate book vilue of quoted investienes

Cash and banl halances

Casli and cash cquivalents
Cash in hand

Bani balances m

- Crrent aceounts

- Dieposits with original maturity upto theee months

Oiher bank balances
Eleposits with maturity of less han three memhs
Deposts with maiuriy more than three menths but less thae twelve months

Arar
3t March 2019

As a
31 March 2018

1 330,033 1570643
6,076,668 6,636,580
020 692 183,791
(650,621) (7763013
[1H69.316) (3311623
516,476 2,603,200
3,055,394,167 2,307,101 754
106,775.731 2RO0E277
995,105 645 839,907,183
86,308,639 603,279,945
7,502,343 7,235,384

SO0,

5,186,100 917,128
13,341,292 218,570
5,169,604,543 4,159,41),778
44, 3000001 -
A4 00001
ALA00,0H0
S1500,000
44,500,000 .
222,500,000 -
222 300,000 -
202,742,263 .
FE1.600
4,332,050 160710
130000 300,00
4,813,740 449,7H)
432,712 HIOGG

114,735,590

L3310

120,182,042

115,412,856




AR Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2019

(AW conpnnis i vugpecs, mdess wthesudse sttedy

Shore-terta Inans and advances

{Considered good)
Itousing loans
Secured

- Inclividualx

- Cthers

(her foans
Secured
- lodividuals
- Others

nseeseed anet considered good)
Mlvances reeoverable in cash o n ksnd or for valie 1o be received

{Unseeared and eonsidered gond)

iy depistts

Balanee with government authorities

Other current assels
Interest

ueel and due on loans

- acevued but not due on loans
-aceroed onfised deposits
Stock of acquiced properties (held for salc)

{Ths shatce bas been intentionatly ioft blunk)

As at
31 March 2019

As at
34 March 2618

TU2838,112 118,252,533
123,269,253 192,136,353
ATA70,008 3605437
141,349,433 127,920,840
9,733,483 12074334
1009540 HU3.000
3,076 13,609
512,145,065 485,597,006
13,186,553 [RHEREY
42403700 18,687,240
14¥0,372 {078,282
1,603,100 3.388,100
60,283,791 24,262,610
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant aceounting policics and other explanatosy information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(A commnts in ypoes, mnless othersise stated)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2012 31 March 2018
18 Revenue from operations
Interest on housing loans and other loans T61,887.007 274,966,100
Tenerest income on deposits with banks 0,089,941 39,999,178
Fees and other charpes 79,042 340 100,681,205
870,619,888 424,646,683
19 Other income
Uixcess Nability/ provisions written back 1,532,224 7,646,430
Gain on sale of current investmenis 19,026,348 30,072,466
General provision for standard assets, written back 2,344,571 -
Profit on saie of acyuired propertics 515,120 -
Tntevest imcome on income-tax refund 02 -
Miscellancous income 18,654,183 38,916,579
42,072,538 76,635,484
20 Employce benefits expense
Salarics, wages and bonus 288 455 965 186,248,289
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 12,185,058 4,106,544
Contribution (o gramity 1,950,790 £,255,149
Staflwelfare expenses 3,259,763 2,280,088
305,751,571 197,890,975
21 Finance costs
Fterest expense
- on borrowings 236,335,006 1,643,451
Processing fees 696,025 3,225,500
237,031,124 13,868,951
22 Other expenses
Rent 25,517,701 21,094,405
Fagat and professional charges 29,556,081 27,218,622
Rages and taxes 3,494,218 2,693,110
Flueerncity 4,739,526 4,382 471
Ditcctors sitting fees 543,200 510,400
Office maintenance expenses 13,545,087 10,335,774
Seeurity expenses 557,652 005,344}
Insurance expenses 2,425,905 1,776,564
Commission cxpenses 11,426,056 7887173
Crmmunication expenses 8,042,636 6,330,054
Loss on disposal of property, plant and cquipment 506,731 22802
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses frefer note 313 375,000 -
Advertisement and business promotion exprnses 3,193,367 2,465,492
Travelling and conveyance 9,666,302 6,908,974
Recriitment chacges 3,400,630 488,719
Service 1as written off 13,609 -
General provision for standard assets 860,717
Provision for subestandard and loss assees 421,795 .
Teaans and advances written ol 1,155,707 2,603,234
Miscellaneous expenses 4,803,452 3,729,528
123,384,554 117,643,379
23 Earnings pershare - Basic and diluted
(a) Compuration of profit attributable to equity sharcholders
Net profic afier tax ateributable 1o equity sharcholders 157,646,418 106,334,770
{b) Computation of weighted average number of shares
Basic {in nos.) 384,045,205 284,876,712
Diluted (in nos) 347,679,521 286,401,182
(¢) Nominal value of equity share 10 10
(d) BEarnings per share
- Basic 0.41 .37
- Dituted .41 .37




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AR camnseants i rpees, snbiss atherwise shated)

24 Related party disclosures
Relatwd party disctosurcs, as required by te notified Accounting Sundard 15 - Relared party disclosures preseribed in the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,

2006 issued by the Centeal Government in excreise of the powers conferred under section 133 of the Act are given below:

Tokling Company ART Capital {India) Private Lamited (Upro 20 March 2018)
AR Business and Consurer Finance {ladi) Private Limited (from 21 March 2018)

Fellow subsidiaries of immediate Folding Company © AR Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Lamited {Upto 20 March 2018)

Parent of the Hulding Company + ART Capital (India) Privane Limited (from 21 dacch 2018)
ART Distribution (Tndiag Private Limired

Subsidiary Company

Key management personnel (K Arvind Hali, Managing Director and Cliel Fxecutive Officer

Enterprises that direcdy or indirectly are under s AR Special Sitaadons Finance (Tndu) Timited
common eontrol (with whom ransictions have ¢ ART Venture Finance (Tndin) Trvate Fimited
take place during (he year) : ART Hinrech (India) Private Linuited

ART Capital Advisory (India) Private Limited

Transactions with rclated parties during the year
The following table provides the rotal smount of traasactions that have been entered o with related partics for

the refevant financial year:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018
Transactions during the year
Holding Company
ART Capital (Tndia) Privare 3amited Jomerdly knomnt i RoAAS Capétl (i) Privute 1 inited;
Reimbursement of expenses received - 90,000
Transfer of fixed asscts - 1,076,62%
ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private 1 mited
lssue of share capital 100,600,000 2,6G0,000,008
Reimbursement of expenses received 21,000,000
Key management personnel
Remuneration paid
Arvind Hali 16,690,619 12,424 598
Enterprises that directly or indircctly are under common controd
Taier-carporate deposits received during the period
ART Speeiad Sfuations Finanee (India) Limited T50,000,000 -
ART Venture Finance (Tadia) Private Limiged 310,000,000 -
AT Fimech (Tndin) Privace Limited GUL,000L00H)
ART Capital Advisory (Tnchia) Peivate amited &43,000,000 -
Inter-corporate deposits repaid during the period
ART Special Siwations Finance (ndia) Limited 750,000,000 -
ART Venture Finance (Tndia) Private Linvited 30,000,600
ART Fintech (Freia) Private Limited 60,000,000
ART Capital Advisory (India) Private Limited 80,000,000 -
Interest paid on inter-carporate depasits during the period
ART Special Situations Finance {India) Linsited 11,092,465 -
ART Venture Finance (India) Private Timited 13,997 534 -
ART Fintech (Indiny Private Limited 2,380,315 -
ART Capital Advisory {India) Private Limited 3,002,192 -
Balance cutstanding as at the end of year
Advances/ expenses recoverable
AR Capital (India) Private Limited ety buonn s ReAAS Capstal (Tudia) Private Linited 1,676,628

Note: The remuneration (o the key managenial pessonnel dies aot include the provision made for gratuity, as it is determined on an actaral basis for the: Conzpany

a whole.




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Surmary of significant accounting poficies and other explanatory information to the consobidued fnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AT cantannts in rugpees, wders othorwise statedd)

25  IPayments to statutosy auditors *
As auditors
For other services

For seimbursenient of expenses
¥ exadurding applivale asoex

26 Coutingent linhilities, capiral and other conunitinents
a, Contingent Habilities

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 Murch 2019 3F March 2048
275 100 250,040
150,000 75,000
58,380 58,450
483,380 383,450

There are numerons interpretative issues relating to the Honble Supreme Court (3C) judgement dated 28 Febraary 2019 on provident fund on which the Tolding

Company s secking legal advice, However, a5 a matter of eauiion, the Hokling Company has made a prov

aforementioned SC order. The Holding Company, on receiving further clarity on the subject, wilt adequaiely update iis provision.

T, Capital und other commiunents

sion on - prospective basis from the date ol the

Hstirmted amount of contracts remaining 1o be eseented on capital account and orhers, and not provided Eor (net of capitl advances) is il (previovs year Rs

6,131,900,




ART Housing Finance (Endia) Limited
Swmmary of significant aceounting policics and other explanatary information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(1K cimmonnts in rwpoes, wnless afherviss stated)

27

28

29

il

Reconciliation of provisions

General provision against Standard Assets
Balance at ihe beginning of the year
Provisions rade/ (seversed) during the yar
Baiguce at the end of the year

Provision lor sub standard asscts, doubtful or loss assets
Balance an the beginming of the vear

Provisions made/ (reversed) during the year

Balance at the ead of the year

Disclosures in respect of nun-cancellable operating leases
Rent payalle not later thar one year

Renr payable Tater than one year but not Taer than (ive years

Rent payable laer than Gve years

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Additional Disclosures m teems of Cirenlar nio, Notifieation No. NFB GGG /MD&CIEO /2016 dated 9 Febmary 207

Capital

(i) Capital to Risk Asset Ratio - CRAR (%0)

Gi) CRAR-Tier | Capitat {¢4)

(ifi) CRAR-Tier 1T Capital ()

(iv) Amount ol subordinated debt raised as Tier- 71 Capital
() Amount raised by fssue of Perpewnd Debt Tnstruments

Reserve fund under section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Balance at the beginning of the year
) Searetory reserve under seation 290 of the Natonat [Heusing Bank Act, 1987
Iy Amount of special reserve under seciion 36(D(vis) of Tncome-tax Act, 1961
1zken into account for the purposes of statutosy reserve under Section 290 of the
NI Act, 1987
¢ Total

Addition/ appropriation/ withdrawal duving the year

Add:
W Amount transferred under section 290 of the NITB Act, 1987
B) Amount of special resceve under section 36¢1)(viii) of Tacome-tax Act, 1961
taken o account for (he preposes of starvory reserve wnder Section 29C of (e

NIB Act, 1987

Less:
a} Amount appropriated from the srtutory reserve vader section 29C of the NI Aet, 1987
b} Amoune withdrawn from the special reserve 0/s 36(13vi) of Income-tas

Act, 1961 talien inte account which has been taken inio aceount for the purpose
of provision u/s 29C of the NFIB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of 1le year
0 Statwtory reserve u/s 290 of the Nanonal Housing Bank Aci, 1987
) Amount of special reserve u/s 3600 }viiol Tacome -tax Acr, 1961 1aken into
account For the purposes of sianoty seserve under Section 29C of the NFHIB Aa,
¢ Total

22,790,452 4,329,734
(2,544,571) 18,460,718
201,445,881 22,790,452
- 898,700
421,795 {B9R,700)
421,795 -
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
18,176,046 17,189,069
25,750,674 43,927,620
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1i6.01% T4, 20%,
115.41%% 103,66,
a0 063",
Nil Nit
Nit Nil
9,905,949 Nil
11,372,332 Nil
21,274,281 Nil
6,916,878 9,065,949
24,619,905 11,372,332
Nl Nil
Nil Nil
16,822 827 9,905,949
35,092,237 11,372,332
52,815,064 21,278,281




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Swmmary of significant acecounting palicies und ather explanatory information to the censolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2049

(A cmannds S mpees, snless pthernise sfaiedd)

TIT  Investments

Pasticulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Value of investments
M Gross value of investments
{a) in Indhia 223,000,000 500,00t
() Owside Endia Nl il
{41} Prosvision for depreciation
{2} Tnn Tondlia Nil Nt
1) Ougsicle Tnckia Nil Nl
i) Mot value of investmenis
: @ In India 223 000,006 50,0000
: (b Owsicle Tndia Nl Nil
Movement of provisions lield towards depreciation on investinents
1) Opening balance Nl Nit
() Add: Provisions made during the yeas Nil Nl
(i) Tess: WriteolT / weitien-back of excess provisions during the year Nil il
(v} Closing balance il Nil
IV Derivatives
#.  Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Intercst Rate Swap (TRS)
Paeticulars As at As at
31 March 2019 3t March 2018
i} The notionat principal of swap agreements Nl Nil
(1) Tosses which would be incurred i€ counterpartics failed to (ulfl their abligations Nil Nl
inder the agreements
(#hi} Collageral required by the housing finance companies upon entering into swaps MNit Nit
(iv) Concentrtion of credit visk arising fimm the swaps Nl Nil
(v) The fair value oF the swap book Nl Nil
MNate: There are e derivative transactions during the year/ previous year
b, Ex¢hange Traded Inicrest Rate (IR) Derivative
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018
(1 Notional principal amount of exchange traded TR derfvatives undertaken during Nit Nl
the year f{nsuinein] wise)
(1) Notional principal amount of exchange traded TR derivatives ovistanding as on Nil Wil
ciod of year instrument-wisce)
(i) Notional principal amount of exchange fraded 1R derivatives oulstanding and nes Nil Nil
"highly effective” Gnstrument-wise)
{v) Mark- to-market value af exebange wraded TR derivatives oustanding and not Nil Nii
Thighly effective” Gnstrument-wise)
Note: Theee are no devivative transactions during the year/ previous year
Disclosurcs on risk exposure in derivatives
c.  Qualitative Disclosure - nat applicable
d.  Disclosures on dsle expasuee in derivatives ~ quantitative disclosure
Particulars Currency Inicrest Rare
Derivatives Derivatives
{1y Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount Nil Nl
(0 Marked 1o market positions {1] Nit Nil
() Assets () il Ni
() Liabsitity () il N#
(i) Credit exposure 2] Nl Nil
N4 Nl

(v} Unhedged exposures
Nate: There are no derivative transactions during the )‘cm‘/ previous year




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Summary of sigpificant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statemyents for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al smments i pmpecs, undess othennise siafod)

V  Securitisation
&, Particulars
. Number of Speciat Turpose Eatities (8PV'S) sponsored by the Housing Finance
Company (HIFCY) for securitisation transactions
2 Totd amount of secritised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the HC towards the Minimum Retention
Requirement (MRR) as on the date of consolidated balance sheet
(1 Oftbalance sheet exposures towards credit concentration

(1) On-balance sheet expasuces towasds credit coneentration

4 Amount of exposures to securitisabon tansactions other than MIER
1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards credit concenteatinn
a) Hxposure to own seeurilizations
b} Vixposure to thivd party sccuritsitions
(i1) On-balance sheer expasures owards eredil concentration
a) Rxposure o own securitizations
by Iix
Nutes

posuge to third party seowritisations

here are no Seewritizaton teansacions during the year/ Previous year

b, Details of financial agacts sold to ssecuritisation / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction

Particulars

() No. of accounrs

(i) Aggregate value {nec ol provisions) of accounts seld to Sccuritisation Company /
Reconstruction Company

(it} Apgregate consideration

(v} Additional consideration realized in respeet of accounts tansferred in cudier

() Agpregate gain / loss over net book value

Note: There ate no secutitivation trasactions duging the year/ previous year

¢ Details of ussignment transactions undertaken by HFCs
Purticulars

(1) Numbcr of accounts

(i) Apgrepate value tet of provisions) of accounts assigned

Gil) Aggregate consideration

(iv) Addirional considesation realized in respect of accounts transferred in easdicr
(v} Apgregate gain / loss over pec book value

Naote There are ne ASSIETIMICNE fransactions during the ycm‘/ Previous year

d. Details of non-performing financial asscts purchased / sold
A, Details of non-performing finuncial assets purchased:
Pasrticulars

1. (%) Number of accounts purchased durmg the year
(b) Apgrepate ousianding
2. {a) Of these, number of accounts restrectured during the year

() Apgrepate owstanding

B, Details of non-performing financial assets sold:

Particulars

L Number of accounts sold
2. Aggregate owstanding

3 Agerepate consideration recerved

Numbers Amount
N N
Nil Nit
Nil Nil
Nt Nii
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
MNil Nil
Nil Nit
Nt Nil
N Nil
Nil Nl
Nil Nil
As at As at
31 March 2049 31 March 2018
Nil Nit
Nil Nil
Nl Nil
Nil Nil
MNil MNit
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nil NIl
Nil Nil
Nl Nit
il Nil
Nil Nil
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nil Nl
Nil Nil
Nit Wit
Nii Nil
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Murclh 2018
Nil Nil
Nil Nl
Nit N




ART Housing Finance (Endia) Limited
Summazy of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(4 strsmitnts b vugpecs, aidess ofhenise stated;

VI

vii

Assets Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of Asscts/ Liabititics)

31 March 2019

Liabilities
Boerowings from Market borrowings Advances Investments
banks/ NHB
i day to 3031 days {one month) 2,757,000 39,089,823 222,500,000
Cher ome mont to 2 meonths 4,194,712 - 39,543,900 -
Chver 2 months upto 3 months 10,264,278 - 40,803,475 .
Over 3 months 1o 6 months 18,402,194 - 122,715,174 -
Over 6 months to 1 year 86,913,423 865,000,000 258,274 584
Over 1 year to 3 years 492,057,568 - 10,512,326 -
Over 3 years 1o 5 years 264,055,998 - G47,797,946
Over § years H0,155,008 . 701,805,894 .
Over 7 years to 10 years 76,253,099 - 021,168,948 -
Over 10 yenrs 89,454,999 - 2,1102,589,089 500,000
Total 1,124,500,169 865,000,000 5,643,501,169 223,000,000
Muaturity paticen of certuin items of assets and labilitics 31 March 2018
Liabilitics
Borrowings from Market borrowings Advances Investments
hanks
1 day to 30-31 days {one month) 2,182,001 . 21,570,357 -
Over one month to 2 months 3,906,250 - 21,818,959
Orer 2 months upteo 3 months 25,000,000 - 22,071,554 -
Clver 3 months 1o 6 months 4,149,148 - 70,150,843 -
Orver 6 months 1o 1 year 63,326,500 - 337,304,450 -
Over 1year o 3 years 213,304,356 - 917,808,341
Over 3 years (0 5 vears 129,712,250 - 635,786,950 -
Over 5 years to 7 yoars 22,056,410 - 427,779,887
Qver 7 years (o 10 years 30,071,000 661,777 841 -
Over 10 years 300,295,000 - 1,483,143,677 S00,000
Togal 559,901,504 - 4,599,211,859 500,000
Note: Foreign currency Habilitics and foroign cursency assets ave N
Exposure
Exposure 10 Real Estate Scctor
Cate gy As at As at
31 Murch 2019 31 March 2018
a, Dircet exposure
i) Residential mortgages-
Lending Tully secured by movgages on residential property that is or will be
occupied by the borrower or that s rented;
= Tnnclividual housing loans up o Rs. 15 lakh 2,861,844,981 1,562,912,713
- Others 1,457,0588,646 1,761,597,378
i) Comumercial real estaten
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real esiates (office buildings, 573,861,351 1,334,701, 768
retail space, mubtipuepose commercnl premises, mulii-Gonily residential
buildings, multi-tenanted coommercial premises, industrial or warehouse space,
hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, cte.).
ifi) Investiments in Morigage Backed Sceuvitics (MBS) and ather securitised exposures
a. Residenal Ml Nif
b. Commercial Real Bstate il Nil
b. Indircct exposure
Nil ™Nil

Toned bazed and non-lund based exposurcs oo Nadonad Tousmg Bank (NT3) and

Housing Minance Companies {11 Cs)




ART Heusing Finance (India} Limited
Summary of significant accounting palicies and other eaplanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(A anrts i vugprecs, nakess athernive statedy

b,

d,

vITT

Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars

{i) direer investment in cyuity shares, conversible bonds, convertible deberures and
units of cquity oviented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exchusively fnvested
in corporate debt;

(%) advances against shares / bonds/ delentures or oiler securities or on chean basis
(o individuals for investment i shares {including TPOs/ 2807}, convertible honds,
convertible debentures, and units of cquity-oriented mumal fands;

(5ii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oviented muual funds are tken s primary
seeurity;

(v} abvances for any other purposes to the extent seeured by the collateral security of
shares or conventible bonds or convertible debentuses or units of equity otiented
mutual funds i.c. where the primary seeurity other than shaves / convertible bonds /
convecuble debentures / units of equity ordened mual Tands 'does not fully cover

the advances;

s [ stockhrokers and guarantees ssued on Lehalf

(v} secured and unsceured advar
ol stockbrokers and market mak

y

(i) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / honds /
debenwites or other seearities or on clean basis for mecting promoters contribution
anivs i anticipation of Taising resources;

Lo the equity of new comp

{vif) bridge loans to companics against expeeted cquity flows / issaes;

i) All exposures iy Venture Capital Fands (hoth segistered and unregistered)

Total exposure to Capital Market

Details of Fingucing of parent company products

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL} exceeded by the HFC

Other disclosures
Registration abtained (rom ether finrancial sector regulators

Disclosure of Penaltics imposed by NI1B and otler regulators

1) Details ol penalty levied by National housing bank
1) Adverse comments by the National housing bank on repulatory compliances
i) Percentage of cutstanding loans granted against collateral of gobd jewellery w

tolal outstanding assets

Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year

As at Ag at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Mit il
Nil N
Nil Nil
Nil N
MNil Nil
Nt Nl
MNil Nl
Nil Nii
MNil Nil

None

None

MNone

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Far the year ended
31 March 2019

Nl MNil
Nil Nt
Nil Ni

Turing the year, CARI has assigaed upgraded rating
ol "A' from earlier tating of "A-".The rating of 'A*
assigned by CARE is not aceepted by the Company.




ART Housing Finance (Indiz) Limited
Suninuuy of significant accounting policies and ather explanatary information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(A emonnts in rpess, wndess otheswie stateed)

d,

.

Pravisions and Contingencics

Breale up of "Provisions and Contingencics' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account
1 {3 {

Particulurs

1. Provisions for deprociation on investment
2. Provision madle towards income-tax
3 Provision towards sub standard, doubtfud and loss asscls
4. Provision (or standard assets (with details like teaser foan, CRE, CRI%RF el
Teaser loans
CRIZ
CRY, -RT
Greher stndard assets

o

. Other provision and contingencics (with details)
Gratuity, compensated absences
Fmployee benelits
Provision for expenses

Beeak ap of loan and advances and provisions thercon

Particulars Haousing loans

TFor the year ended
31 March 2019

For the yeur ended
31 March 2018

Nil
57,967,908
421,795

Nil
{147,383)
(1,845,781
(351,407)

1,950,790
27,270,918
15,406,201

Nil
32,941,526
Nl

Nil
7,846,029
3,564,266
74050,423

30,11¢
17,845,667
20,862,817

Non-Housing loans

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 Marcch 2019

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Stundard assets

A) Total owstanding ameount 4,377 405,297 2,994,141,195 1,263,223, 506 1,606,170 612

1) Provisions nade 13,212,427 11,273,350 7,333,454 11,517,102
Sub-standard asscts

a) Total ouestanding amount 2,811,966 - -

) Provisions sade 421,795 -
Doubtlul assets — Category-1

a) Fotal outstanding amount Nil Nil Nil Nl

I3} Provisions made Nl Nl il Nil
Doubtful assets — Catepgory. 11

a) "Fotal outstanding amount Nil Nit Nl Nil

1) Provisions made Ml il il Nt
Doubtlul assets ~ Category-1T1

a) Total outstanding amouny Nil Nii Nif Nil

by Provisions made Ml Nit Nl N
Luss assets

a) Towl outstandling, amount Nil Ni] Nit Nit

1) Provisions macle Nil Nl Nl Nl
Total

a) Tatal outstanding amount 4,380,277,263 2,994,141,195 1,263,223,206 1,606,179,612

1) Provisions made 13,634,222 11,273,350 7,233,454 1,517,102
Concentration of publie deposits, xdvances, exposures and NPAs
Concenteation of public deposits (for public deposit taking/nolding HECs)

As at As at

Particulars

Total deposits oF twenty Rarpest depositors
Pereentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors (o 1otal deposits of the HUEC

Concentration of loans and advances

Particulars

Tatal Joans and advances 10 fventy Targest borrowers

Pereentage of loans and advances 1o twenty laggest horrowers to total advances of

the HTC

{IBix spusee Sty beow intentionally Joff blants)

31 March 2019

31 Murch 2018

Not applicaldle
Not applicable

MNat applicable
Not applicalle

Ag at As at
31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018
558,855,434 1,365,099,541

L90

2037




ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(A eonrournts it rigpwes, wndess othevise stafed)

b, Concentration of all Exposure (including off-halance shect expasure)

Particulars

Tatal exposure o twenty Targese borrowers / costomers
Pereentage of exposures o twenty Targest bogsoswers / customess (o total exposaee of
the TIFC on borrowers/ customers

i.  Concentration of NPAs
Particulars

Tenal exposure 1o 1op ten NIPA accounts

j.  Sectorawise NPAs - Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that scoter

Particulars

A. Housing loans:

1. tndividuals

2. Builders,/ Project loans
3. Corporates

4. Others (speaiy)
Non-Housing loans:

=

1. Individuals

2. Builders/Project Yoais
3. Corporates

4 Ohthers (speaily)

k.  Movement of NPAs
Particulars

(1) Net NPAs 1o net advances (vn)
1Ty Mevement of NPAs (Gross)
ay Oypening, balance
I3} Adeiions during the year
o} Reducrions during the year
J) Closing balance
{1y Movenient of net NPAs
a} Opening hatanee
by Additions during the year
) Reductions during the year
) Closing balance
1V) Mavement of provisions for NPPAs (cxcluding provisions on standard assets)
#) Opening balance
) Provisions made during the year
o} Write-off/write-back of excess provisions

) Closing balance

1. Overseas asscts
Particulars

None

. Off-balance sheet 8PVs sponsared (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms)

Parriculuars

Naone

n,  Customers complaings

Parciculars

@) No. of complaints pending at the begimning of the year
1 Mo of camplaints reccived during the vear

¢} Now of complaints redressed duning the year

d) No. of eomplaints pendfng ar the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
558,855,434 1,305,009 541
DMy 28370
Asat Ag at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

2811.966

As at
31 Murch 2019

As at
31 March 2018

£.068%,
Nit
Ml
Nit

MNil
Nt
N
Nil

For the year ended
31 March 2089

Nil
Nl
Nt
Nl

Mil
Nil
Wit
Nl

For the year ended
31 March 2018

.04 o

5,018,340
2,206,374
2,811,966

(.00

5,991,334
307023
9,069,357

- 5,092,634
3,258,805 2,616,320
868,634 7,708,954
2,390,117 -
- 898,700
1,759,535 461,703
1,357,740 1,366,403
421,795 .
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Masrch 2048
Nil Nil
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Marcl 2048
Nii Nil
Asg at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 20£8
Nil Nil
130 54
128 54
2 Nil




ART Housing Finanee {Inda) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

{1 ansasnds i regpocs, watess sihernive stafed)

30 Information as required to be farmished a5 per section 22 of the Micra, Small and Medium Eaterprises Thevelopment (MSMED) Act, 2006 for the year ended
A1 March 2089 35 piven below. 'Phis infornation has been detensined 1o the extent sudv parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Group.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

bl Prmcipal amount and imgerest due thercon temaining unpaid o any supplier covered under MSMED Act,
2006:
Principal 493,500 -

luterest
i) The amount of interest pafd by the buyer i terns of seetion]6, of the MSMIED Act, 2006 along, with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
i1} ‘The amount of inrerest, due wnd payable Tor dhe pericd of delay in making payment {ehich have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but withowt adding the mterest specilicd under MSMIED Acy,
2006.

) "The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid ar the end of each accaunting vear.
v) The amaount of further inte remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unitl such date when

the interest dues as sbove are actually paid to the small enterpeise Tor the purpose of disallowance as o

deducrible expenditure under secion 23 of the MSMETY Aer, 2006

31 Corporate social responsibility expenses
Gross amount required 1o be spent by the 1 lolding Company during the year is € 356,933 (previous vear: 2 nil),
Amount spene dusing the year on corporate social responsibitig: 375,000 (previous year: € nil).

Particulars Yeur In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

31 March 2019

31 March 2018 - - R
31 March 2019 373,000 - 375,060
3 March 2018 B - .

(':nnsl|'uclim1/:|cc|uisilinn ol any assel

On purposes other than above

32 Additional information Lo consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2019 (Pursuant o Schedule HT o the Act):

Net assers, i.¢., total assets minus total Sharc in profit/ {loss)
liabélitics
Name of the entity Amount As a % of Amount As a % of consolidated
consolidated net assets profit and loss
Holding Company’
AR Housimg Pinance {Tndia) Linited 4,011,590, 496 1001, 157,683,913 T00.82%,
Subsidiary
AR Diistrabution (1) Privare Limited 231,423 D01 {37,495) SL02%%
Less: consolidated adiustments {300,000 RIREI - oy
Total 4,011,321,919 100.00% 157,646,418 1060.00%

33 Previous year figures have heen regrouped /rechasified wherever considered necessary to make them in line with that of the current year.

This s the summary of significant accountmg policies and othey
cxplanatory information relerred W in our teport of even date.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Disectors of
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
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(:h'eH"ihw\cin] Officer

For Walker Chandiok & Associates

Chartered Acgopntanes
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Partner Company Secretary

Mempershsp o 513273 Membership No. ACS 24816
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Sixth (6%) Director’s Report on the
affairs of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited (formerly known as ART Affordable
Housing Finance (Indin) Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” “your
Company” or “AHFL"), together with audited standalone and consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019,

FINANCIAL REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A. Income

Your Company posted total income of Rs 90.6 crores during the year, as compared to
Rs 48.2 crores in the previous year which represents an increase of 88% year-on-year.
Out of this, interest income on loans has increased by 184%, from Rs 27.5 crores in the
previous year to Rs 78.2 crores in FY 2018-19. Your Company’s Net Income (net of
financial expenses) is recorded at Rs 57.3 crore.,

Sources of Income

# Interest onJoans = Fees and other charges  « Income from investment

B. Expenses

Expenses (excluding provisions) for the year stood at Rs 69 crores, as compared to Rs
31 crores for the previous year representing an increase of 122%. The increase in
expenses is attributable to higher operating expenses arising out of manpower
addition at supervisory and supervised levels together with branch network
expansion, branch infrastruciure, IT infrastructure in consonance with business

growth,




Expenses

i Employee benefils expense & Finance costs  Other expenses (Excl Provision)

C, Profits

Your Company earned a Profit after tax of Rs 15.76 crores for the year as against Profit
after tax of Rs 10.63 crores in the previous year. This is primarily attributable to higher
business numbers with the change in strategy and the new branches expansion.

(in Rupees)

| Diluted (Rs.)

Total Revenues 912,692,426 912,685,062 501,282,167 501,269,750
Total Expenditures 694,991,376 694,946,517 347,692,603 347,623,550
Profit before Taxation 217,701,050 217,738,545 153,589,564 153,646,200
(PBT)

Less: Provisions for 60,054,632 60,054,632 47,254,794 47,254,794
Tax/ Deferred Tax

Net Profit after Taxes 157,646,418 157,683,913 106,334,770 106,391,406
(PAT)

Transfer to Statutory 31,536,783 31,636,783 21,278,281 21,278,281
Reserve under section

29C of the NHB Act,

87 | I
Profit/ Loss bought 21,278,281 21,278,281 (102,659,269) (102,484,323)
forward from previous
eriod

Balance carried 1o 161,321,918 161,590,496 3,675,501 3,906,583
balance sheet

Earnings per share

.{ (Face Value Rs. 10/-

Basic (Rs.) 0.41 0.41 0.37 0.37

0.41




| Tangible Net Worth | 4,011.321.918 | 4,011,631,494 | 3,753,675,501 | 3,753,906,583 |

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

In FY 18-19, we have seen two periods wherein for the first Half of the year it was
business as usual. H2 FY19 witnessed trust deficit and crises of confidence within the
Banking system towards NBFC / HFC due to matters intrinsic to a few NBFCs/ HFCs
including ALM challenges. The banks became over-cautious in lending to the sector
impacting the growth of credit offtake in the entire industry. Your company as such
does not have any of the issues that Plagued the industry on the ALM side. However,
given the external headwinds we consciously took a cautious approach towards
calibrated growth and conservation of liquidity. In addition, we have received
Refinance limit of Rs 45 Cr from NHB in the month of January

a) Sanctions

During the year, your Company has sanctioned loans amounting to Rs 388.3 crores as
compared to Rs 555.1 crores in the previous year. Despite slowdown in Housing
Finance market, the business performance of the Company continued to be
encouraging during 2019-20.

b) Disbursements

During the year, your company has disbursed loans amounting to Rs 362.7 crores as
compared to Rs 409.6 crores in the previous year. The decline in disbursement is due
to the external headwinds in NBFC /HFC market.

Disbursement (In cr)

450.0 407.2
400.0 - e
350.0
300.0
250.0
200.0
150.0
100.0 69.3
50.0
0.0

FY 17 FY 18

C) Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

L




Your Company has developed a strong collection and recovery mechanism, v\Thi.Ch
together with strong origination standards, has resulted in 0.05% of Gross NPAs in its

portfolio.

Your Company continued to review its portfolio quality periodically to avoid any
delinquencies, and apply course corrections if any required, apart from maintaining
high lending standards to mitigate risks.

During the year under review, your company has made a provision for Rs 2.05 crores
towards Standard Assets and Rs 0.04 crores towards Sub-standard, doubtful and loss
Assets, in compliance with the guidelines issued by the Regulator National Housing

Bank.
d) Portfolio of the company

The portfolio of the total loan outstanding of your company stood at Rs 564.4 crores
as on March 31, 2019 as against Rs 459.9 crores in the previous year.

600.0 Portfolio (In cr)
500.0 459.9

400.0
300.0
200.0
100.0

0.0

98.1

FY 17 "FY 18

The average ticket size on portfolio as on March 31, 2019 stood at Rs 9.5 lakhs which
is same as of previous year.

EXPANSION OF BRANCH NETWORK

In FY 17-18 Company has undertaken rapid branch expansion to effectively cater to
the Lower Income target segments. Further, in FY 18-1 9, your Company’s branch
network has increased from 44 locations across 6 regions (Delhi NCR, Haryana,
Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujarat and Uttar Pradesh) as on 31st March, 2018 to 46
locations across 6 regions (Delhi NCR, Haryana, Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujarat and
Uttar Pradesh) as on 315t March, 2019

Details of the branches of the Company as on March 31, 2019 are given below:




| . Branch- |Locations .
| ehysicate |

Delhi-NCR 4 Delhi NSP, Mayur Vihar, Gurugram, Faridabad

Haryana 6 Rohtak, Karnal, Panipat, Kaithal, Yamuna Nagar, and
1 Virtual Branch

Rajasthan 15 Jaipur, Bikaner, Ajmer, Alwar, Kota, Jodhpur,
Udaipur, Sikar and 7 Virtual branches

Maharashtra 8 Kalyan (Mumbai), Pune, Ahmednagar, Kolhapur,
Boisar (Mumbai), Nasik, 2 Virtual branches ]

Gujarat 9 Ahmedabad, Surat, Vapi, Rajkot, Vadodara, Junagarh,
Jamnagar, Bhavnagar, Mehsana

Uttar Pradesh 4 Lucknow, Kanpur, Agra, Meerut

Total 46

DIVIDEND

Considering growth and future strategic plans of the Company, your Board do not
recommend any dividend for the financial year under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Pursuant to the requirement of section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987, an amount of Rs 3.15
crores has been transferred to Reserves for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 out
of which Rs 2.47 crores was transferred to Special Reserve under section 36(1)(viii) of
the Income Tax Act and Rs 0.68 crores to Statutory Reserve Fund. For details of
Reserves and Surplus of the Company, please refer Note No 4 of the standalone
audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,

2019.
STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Financial Year 2018-19 was an important year during which your Company
strengthened its base to grow exponentially.

The key parameters and milestones of the Company has been summarized below:

1. The team strength has increased to 467 during the year as compared to 402 in
the previous year. The same has been done with a view to build up and expand
the business capacity in the early formative years of the Company.

2. The Company started operating in 46 locations as compared with 44 locations
in the previous year. .

3. The team strength has been increased in Sales as well as risk functions like
Credit, Technical, Legal and Fraud Control Unitsy(’\’(;;i '

IR ;‘_’




4. Company has also invested in strengthening the collections team for early

controls on the delinquency, if any.
5. The Company has made significant investment, both knowledge and financial,

in digitisation of the business work flow activities.
6. The loan portfolio as on March 2019 stood at Rs 564.3 Cr as against Rs 459.9 Cr

as on March 2018. _
7. The Capital Adequacy Ratio as on March 2019 was 116.04% well above the

regulatory limit of 12% as stipulated by NHB for housing finance companies.
8. Your company has continued to maintain good asset quality with a Gross NPA
at0.05% on March 31, 2019 and Net NPA at 0.04%, in-spite of difficult economic

environment,

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of
your Company.

MATERIAIL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of your
Company have occurred between the end of year under review and date of this

Director’s Report.
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the main Business of the Company.
However, the Company has diversified its business by extending its financial services
thereby including advisory and property services as well as brokerage services
towards Real Estate.

Buying a property and arranging finance for the property are an integral part of the
customer journey and supplement each other. The Property Services business will
offer Real Estate Advisory and brokerage services with focus on deriving fee business
from such customers who plan to buy property and will also generate leads for the
home finance business and vice versa. it will also aid in strengthening our relationship
with builders and other members of the real estate marketplace.

The Company has altered the Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association in

this regard which has been duly approved by the Board and the Shareholders in their
respective Meetings held on February 07, 2019.

CHANGE IN THE NAME OF THE COMPANY

The name of your Company has been changed from ART Affordable Housing Finance
(India) Limited to ART Housing Finance (India) Limited w.e.f September 20, 2018 in
order to signify the diversification of its target customer base by including Medium

474
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and Higher Income segment in addition to Low Income segment which the Company
is presently focusing. This has helped the Company in servicing a wider customer base
thereby accelerating the growth of the portfolio of the Company.

SUBSIDARY COMPANY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company has 1 (One) wholly owned subsidiary as on March 31, 2019 i.e, ART
Distribution (I) Private Limited. Your Company does not have any joint venture(s)/
associate company(ies) within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Act.

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the nature of
business of the subsidiary company and no Company has become or ceased to be
subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital was increased from Rs 400,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four
Hundred Crores Only) to Rs 1000,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crores Only)
divided into 100,00,00,000 (Hundred Crores) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten
Only) each on September 07, 2018 which was duly approved by the shareholders in
their duly convened General Meeting held on the same date at a shorter notice.

On March 31, 2019 the Authorised Share Capita] of the Company stood at Rs
1000,00,00,000/ - (Rupees One Thousand Crores Only) divided into 100,00,00,000 (One
Hundred Crores) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, the following allotment was made by the Company:

Dateof Issue | Date  of [Investor ~ | Number of | Total Amount
e Allotment | e D Gharag (IIIRHPEES)
April 03, 2018 May 08, | ART Business & |1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
2018 Consumer Finance
(India) Private
Limited

On March 31, 2019 the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company
stood at Rs 385,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Eighty-Five Crores Only)
divided into 38,50,00,000 (Thirty-Eight Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each.

Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to voting,
dividend or otherwise.




COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the
Board of Directors and the Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the

Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company being a non-deposit accepting Housing Finance Company as per the
Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 has not accepted, renewed or
held any public deposits during the year under review and shall not accept any
deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the NHB and accordingly
requirements under Chapter V of the Act read with Rule 8(5)(v) and 8(5)(vi) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as well as requirement of maintaining liquid assets
as specified under Section 29B of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 are not

applicable to your Company.

FINANCE

During the year under review, the Company met its funding requirements through
Bank Loans and availing refinance from NHB (National Housing Bank). The details of

the same are as follows:

Charge ID | Name of the Charge | Date of creation of | Amount
Holder charge
100231038 | National Housing Bank January 14, 2019 Rs 45 Crores

The aggregate bank borrowings, ie. term loans plus overdraft, at the end of the
financial year stood at Rs 198.95 crores as compared to Rs 56.0 crores at the end of the
previous year. Further the overall borrowings are within regulatory ceiling of 16 times
of net owned funds as prescribed under the NHB Regulations.

The overall cost of borrowings (average) was 8.80 % p.a. as on March 31, 2019,

CREDIT LINKED SUBSIDY SCHEME

Your Company and its management team is highly committed to the ‘Housing for al
mission. Keeping this in mind, the Company participated in Government initiatives
to facilitate benefits of the ‘Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna: Credit Linked Subsidy
Scheme” (PMAY-CLSS) from NHB for its customers across urban and semi-urban

India.




During the year, the Company successfully delivered subsidy of Rs 53.62 crores to its
customers under the PMAY-CLSS scheme under different scheme.

EWS/LIG (New) 2435 45.78
MIG | 485 6.71
MIG IT 75 _ 1.13
Total 2995 53.62
CREDIT RATING

The Company was unrated during the financial year 2018-19. Subsequently, the
Company initiated the rating process on the basis of its financial performance for the
financial year 2018-19 and has been rated as “A- (Stable Outlook)” by the rating

agency CARE,

CHANGE IN REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT OF THE COMPANY

For transactions of the Company’s shares in dematerialised form and in order to be in
line with other Group Companies, your Company has changed its Registrar and
Transfer Agent from Beetal Financial Computer Services Private Limited to Link
Intime India Private Limited having office at C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli
(West), Mumbai- 400083 w.e.f February 07, 2019, as approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company, :

Link Intime is an integrated player in the IPO & Corporate Registry business with Pan
India reach and reputation. Over the time, Link Intime has become one of the largest
and most trusted names in the IPO and Corporate Registry industry, with a credible
and distinguished history of excellence.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, the i <1 Annual Return of the
Company as at financial year ended March 31, 2019 as in the prescribed Form MGT-9 is
attached here as Annexure- A and the same is also available on the website of the Company at

www arthfc.com.,
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2019 is
mentioned as below:




Name of Director Category

Mr Raj Vikash Verma (Chairman) Non-Executive Director
Ms Anita Kapur Independent Director
Mr Arvind Roshan Hali (Managing Director & CEO) | Executive Director

Mr Brijesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director
 Mr Pradeep Kumar Non-Executive Director

Ms Raakhe Kapoor Tandon Non-Executive Director
Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar Independent Director
APPOINTMENTS:

During the year under review, the following Directors were appointed on the Board
of the Company:

* Mr Pradeep Kumar was appointed as an Additional Director on August 16,
2018.

* Ms Anita Kapur was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of
Independent Director on the Board of the Company with effect from September

05, 2018.
None of the Directors ceased to be the Directors of the Company.

DIRECTOR(S) DISCLOSURES

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of the
Act, circular(s) / notification(s) / direction(s) issued by the National Housing Bank
(NHB Regulations) and other applicable laws, none of the Directors on the Board of
your Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors.

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received
declaration from Mr. Brijesh Kumar Gupta, Lt Gen (Retd.) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar and
Ms Anita Kapur (appointed w.e.f. September 05, 2018), Independent Directors of the
Company affirming compliance with the criteria of independence as specified in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, '

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of the Act, the following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP")
of the Company:

* Mr Arvind Roshan Hali - Managing Director & CEQ
* Mr Pankaj Jain - Chief Financial Officer
¢ Ms Ritika Sati - Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
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During the year under review, following changes took place in the KMPs of the
Company: -

* Mr Vipin Jain, ceased to be a KMP of the Company pursuant to his resignation
from the post of Chief Financial Officer w.e.f May 16, 2018; and

* Mr Pankaj Jain was designated as KMP of the Company pursuant to his
appointment as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f May 16, 2018.

DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr Raj Vikash Verma, Non-Executive Director, being
longest in office, shall retire by rotation and being eligible has offered himself for re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

APPOINTMENT OF NON EXECUTIVE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors of the Company designated Mr Raj Vikash Verma, Non-
Executive Director of the Company as the Non-Executive Chairperson of the Board of
Directors of the Company pursuant to Article number 114 of Articles of Association of
the Company, other applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 and per NHB

Governance w.e.f June 19, 2018.
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors adopted
a Board Performance Evaluation Policy and detailed process for facilitating
performance evaluation of the Board, as a collective entity, that of its Committee(s)
and individual Directors including the Chairman.

In terms of the requirement of Schedule 1V of the Act, a separate meeting of the
Independent Directors was held on March 19, 2019 to review the performance of the
Non Independent Directors including the Chairman and the Board, as a collective
entity. Performance evaluation was carried out by way of obtaining feedback from the
Independent Directors through a structured questionnaire prepared and in
accordance with the Board Performance Evaluation Policy and Performance

Evaluation Process, ‘

Based on the questionnaire circulated and discussions at the Independent Directors
meeting, the Independent Directors expressed satisfaction with the overall
performance of the Board and Non-Independent Directors including the Chairperson,
The Independent Directors also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow
of information between the Company management and the Board based on various
paramelers viz. detailed information on business and support functions provided to
the Board, action taken by management on suggestions/ r quest. by the Board/




Committee(s) Members, in-depth discussions at the Board/ Committee(s) Meetings
and found it to be adequate enough to assist the Board/ Committee(s) in performing

its duties effectively and reasonably.

REMUNERATION POLICY

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors the Compan y
has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee whose scope of work covers
the performance evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management of the Company. The evaluation and appraisal is done in line with the
Performance Management Policy of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are given in MGT-9 (Annexure
A).

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors had constituted the Audit Committee pursuant to provisions
of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 on 21st August, 2015. The Committee
consists of the following Directors as on 31st March, 2019:

Name of Director - Member Designation

‘Mr Brijesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director
Mr Raj Vikash Verma Non-Executive Director
Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar Independent Director

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors had constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on 21st
August, 2015. The Committee consists of following Directors as on 31st March, 2019:

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr Brijesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director

Mr Raj Vikash Verma Non-Executive Director J




Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar Independent Director

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Executive Committee as a sub-committee of the Board on
28th April, 2014. The Committee consists of following Directors as on March 31, 2019:

Name of Director - Member Designation
'Mr Arvind Roshan Hali Managing Director & CEQO
Ms Raakhe K Tandon Non-Executive Director
LMr Raj Vikash Verma Non- Executive Director

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on January 16,
2018. The Committee consists of following Directors as on March 31, 2019:

Name of Director - Member Designation
Mr Arvind Roshan Hali Managing Director & CEQO
Ms Raakhe Kapoor Tandon Non- Executive Director
Lt Gen (Retd.) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar Independent Director
]

NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19;

Table containing details of the Board Meetings and Committees Meetings held during
the year under review, along with dates are as follows:

['s. Name of Committee No. of Meetings | Date of Meetings

No
1L Board Meetings 8 (Eight)

April 03, 2018;
April 04, 2018;

May 8, 2018;

May 16, 2018;
September 04, 2018;
September 07, 2018;
November 03, 2018;
February 7, 2019
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2. Audit Committee 4 (Four) 1. May 08, 2018;
2. September 04, 2018;
3. November 03, 2018;
4. February 07, 2019;
3. Nomination and 6 (Six) 1. April 04, 2018;
Remuneration 2. May 08, 2018;
Committee 3. May 16, 2018;
4. August 16, 2018;
5. September 04, 2018
, 6. November 03, 2018 i
4 Risk Management 2 (Two) 1. May 08, 2018
Committee 2. September 04, 2018
5 Corporate Social 1 (One) March 30, 2019
Responsibility
Committee

In terms of Schedule IV of the Act, a meeting of the Independent Directors was held on
March 19, 2019 without the attendance of the Non-Independent Directors and members
of the management of the Company. All the Independent Directors attended the Meeting.

These meetings were held in a manner that not more than 120 days intervened between
two consecutive meetings. The required quorum was present at all the above mentioned
meetings. :

During the year under review, the Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2017-18
was held on May 8, 2018.




ATTENDANCE OF DIRCTORS/ MEMBERS AT THE BOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

. . Nomination & Corporate Social
Audit Committee Remuneration Responsibility

# Name Board Meetings .
Meeting Committee Committee

Meetings Meelings Meetings Meetings
held Attended held Attended held Attended held Attended

Ms
Raakhe 8 3
1. | Kapoor 0 0
Tandon

Mr
Arvind 3
Roshan
Hali

Lt Gen 1 1
(Retd) Dr -
Sukhraj Pal 8 8 4 3 6 6
Kochhar

Mr Raj
4. | Vikash 8 8 4 4 6 6 - -
Verma

Mr Brijesh
5. | Kumar 8 5 4 4 6 3
Gupta

Mr
6. | Pradeep 4 1 - - - -
Kumar™

Ms Anita

Kapur *2 3 2 ) ) ) )

1. Mr Pradeep Arora was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f Au gust 16, 2018 ‘
2. Ms Anita Kapur was appointed as an additional director in the capacily of Independent Director w.e.f.

Septenber 05, 2018
STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the auditor appointed in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) meeting should hold office from the conclusio 0 meeting till the




conclusion of the sixth AGM, with the meeting wherein such appointment had been
made being counted as the first meeting. The current Statutory Auditors, M/s. Walker
Chandiok & Associates, Chartered Accountants has completed 5 years of tenure, from
the first AGM of the Company till the conclusion of the sixth AGM of the Company,
subject to the ratification by members at every AGM.

Now, it is proposed to re-appoint M/s. Walker Chandiok & Associates, Chartered
Accountants as its statutory auditors as per the provisions of Companies Act 2013,
subject to approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the

Company.
AUDITORS’ REPORTS
Statutory Audit Report

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Associates, Statutory Auditors in their report(s) on the
standalone audited financial statements and consolidated audited financial statements
of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, have not submitted any
qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers. However, Clarifications,
wherever necessary, have been included in the ‘Notes to Accounts’ section of the
Annual Report. Furthermore, a Report under para no. 34 of the National Housing Bank
Directions, 2010 is attached and is self-explanatory.

Secretarial Audit Report

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s Dolly
Vilacha & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake secretarial audit of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. The report of M/s Dolly Vilacha
& Co., Practicing Company Secretary in prescribed Form MR-3 is enclosed herewith
at Annexure B to this Director’s Report.

M/s Dolly Vilacha & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, in their report on the
secretarial audit of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 has not
submitted any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers.

Maintenance of cost records

Your Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of Section 148(1) of
the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT




Your Company has set up a strong operating framework and developed robust credit
appraisal policies to evaluate income and repayment capabilities of customers. The
Company continues to practice prudence in terms of its lending practices and uses
effective checks and balances to mitigate risk exposure. This includes a credit history
check from credit bureau data, an employment, business and residence check through

personal discussions, and in-house legal, technical and fraud checks in addition to
agency verifications,

Company’s Risk Management framework provides the mechanism for risk
assessment and mitigation. The Board has delegated responsibility of overseeing Risk
Management framework to the Risk M anagement Committee. The Risk Management
Committee (RMC) of your Company comprises of Mr Arvind Roshan Hali, Managing
Director & CEO, Mr Raj Vikash Verma, Director and Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Sukhraj Pal
Kochhar, Independent Director of the Company. The Risk Management Committee is
responsible for reviewing the risks associated with the business of the Company, its
root causes and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the same. The
Committee meets on half yearly basis for review of risk management parameters and.

analysis,
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems,
accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company.

Further based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake
corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.
Significant audit observations and recommendations along with corrective actions
thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and
explanations obtained by us, and based on the report(s) of Statutory Auditors and
submission(s) by Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year under
review, the Directors are of the view that the internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements of the Company were adequate and operating efficiently.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY




Your Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and established a mechanism for
Directors and Employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud, or violation of code of conduct, The mechanism also provides for
adequate safeguard against the victimisation of employees who avail the mechanism,
and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional
cases. The whistle blower policy is available on the website of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

In terms of Section 135 of the Act, the Board of Directors adopted a “CSR Policy’ which
helps towards contribution and furtherance of your Company’s objective to create
value in the society and community in which it operates, through its services, conduct
and initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the society and community, in
fulfilment of its role as a socially responsible corporate citizen.

The CSR Policy of the Company inter-alia indicates the CSR activities that can be
undertaken by the Company and defines the roles and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors and CSR Committee in implementing and monitoring CSR projects
identified and supported by the Company.

Further, the Corporal Social Responsibility Committee of the Company as on March
31, 2019 comprises of Mr Arvind Roshan Hali, Managing Director & CEOQ, Lt Gen
(Retd.) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar, Independent Director and Ms Raakhe Kapoor
Tandon, Non- Executive Director.,

During the Financial Year under review the Company has contributed an amount
aggregating to Rs 3,75,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs and Seventy-Five Thousand only)
to CanCare Trust with main focus on the subject is as follows:

- Service: treating mouth & throat cancers - India’s most common cancer & facilitating
access through affordable charges.

- Research: Head & Neck Cancers form 30 percent of India’s cancer. Research is essential
to address the unresolved issues towards curing these cancers. With such high
incidence, we need to take the lead in scientific studies fo progress in our endeavour
to evolve guidelines for rational treatment decisions., This requires investment in a
modern laboratory with facilities for Molecular Pathology incl Gene amplification,
Polymerase Chain Reaction, Gene Expression Analysis, Next Generation Sequencing,
besides others. The laboratory will have the capacity to research biomarkers for early
diagnosis, novel treatments and personalised medicine.

Education: With over 2 lac Head & Neck cancer cases in India, mostly from
underprivileged sections of society, we are lacking adequate trained manpower to
cater to them. We need to leverage the public health system & i corporate oncology
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treatment in these centres. Training of manpower including doctors & nurses for
specialized cancer care is the way forward.

The estimated cost of the project is Rs. 200 crores. Rs. 155 crores have been raised
already, with major contributions from the Narotam Sekhsaria Foundation, the Tata
Trust, Allanas, Mahindra Foundation, H T Parekh (HDFC) Foundation & the Cipla
Foundation. We are grateful to all of them for their support and belief in the project.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Considering the nature of industry in which the Company operates, fransactions with
related parties of the Company are in the ordinary course of business which are also
on arm's length basis. All such Related Party Transactions were placed before the
Audit Committee for approval and thereafter for the approval of the shareholders of
the Company for Omnibus approval for better Corporate Governance. The particulars
of contracts or arrangements with related parties as referred in section 188(1) of the
Actis attached to this Report in prescribed form AQC - 2 as Annexure C. Your Directors
draw attention of the members to Note 25 of the financial statement which sets out

related party disclosures.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

In terms of Section 186(11) of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, the provisions of Section 186 in respect of loans made, guarantees given or
securities provided by the Company are not applicable to the Company. Further, details of
the investments made by the Company please refer Note 12 of the standalone (audited)
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN AND SCHEME

Your Company believes that its success and ability to achieve objectives is largely
determined by the quality of its workforce and recognises that not only good
employment opportunities but also additional motivating mechanisms are needed to
incentivise employees and aligning their interest with the interest of the Company. In
recognition of the said objective, the Company adopted and implemented AAHF
Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 (“ESOP 2017”) pursuant to the approval of the
shareholders, at their meeting held on May 29, 2017.

Under ESOP Scheme 2017, a pool of 50,00,00,000 ESOPs was approved in two tranches
of 25,00,000 each which was approved by the Shareholders on May 29, 20175 and April
03, 2019 respectively. Further, they were subsequently granted in 3 Iots to the
employees thus covering a large pool of our employees.
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ESOP Pool 2500000 5000000
00

Approved 5000000

Granted till date

(including

subsequent re grants 1800000 | 305000 2993000 5098000

from

the lapsed pool)

Lapsed (during the

grant 275000 70000 273000 618000

period)

Net Grant till date 1525000 235000 2720000 4480000

Vested 0 0 0 0

Exercised 0 0 0 0

Yet te be exercised 1525000 235000 2720000 4480000

Balance available 520000

On May 06, 2019 the Board has approved AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019 which was duly
approved by the Shareholders on May 09, 2019. The brief details of the same is

hereunder:

Particulars

ESOP 2019

Number of options approved

50,00,000

Number of options vested

Number of options exercised

Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise
of options

Number of options lapsed / cancelled

Exercise Price of the options exercised in Rs. / per
equity share

INR 10/-

Variation of terms of options

As per ESOP Scheme




Money realised by the exercise of Options -

Total number of options in force 50,00,000

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE
WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has formed a robust Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy (‘Policy’) in line
with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Work Place
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee
(ICC) has been set-up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.

The ICC of your Company comprises of following Members as on March 31, 2019:

Ms Roopa Mehra _ Presiding Officer

Ms Money Khanna Member

Mr Akhlesh Sharma Member

Dr Rajat Mitra Member (on behalf of Swanchetan Society for
: Mental Health)

Subsequent to the year under review, pursuant to the change in organisation structure,
the ICC was re-constituted by appointment of Ms Mamta Sharma, in place of Ms

Money Khanna.

No cases of sexual harassment have been reported nor investigated by the ICC during
the year under review,

- ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Since the Company provides Home Loans, most of the information as required under
Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8 of Companies
(Accounts of Companies) Rules, 2014, is not applicable. However, the information, as
applicable, has been given in Annexure ~ D and forms part of this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has not earned any foreign exchange during the year under review.
Further the amount of foreign exchange outgo is given below:
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Earnings: NIL
QOutgo: NIL

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

During the year under review, no orders have been passed against your Company by
any regulator(s) or court(s) or tribunal(s) which would impact the going concern status
and / or the future operations of your Company.

CONFIRMATION ON FRAUD, MISFEASANCE OR ANY IRREGULARITY IN
THE COMPANY

There were no instances of fraud, misfeasance or irregularity detected and reported
in the Company during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by us, pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Directors hereby confirm that;

a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent s0 as to give atrue
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

¢) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities;

d) they have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws while ensuring that such systems were adequate
and operating effectively.

APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere gratitude to the customers
of the Company for their confidence and patronage; to the Shareholders, regulatory
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bodies, bankers and rating agencies for their unyielding support and guidance; and to
the employees for their commitment, hard work and zeal during the year.

By order of the Board of Directors

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

e d
3 Y&W
Managing Director & CEO Director
DIN:05285114 DIN:03546341

Date: June 27, 2019
Place: Gurugram




LREGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

Annexure - A

Form No. MGT-9

Annual Return as on the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

II.

.| U65999DL2013PLC255432

:VReglstratlon Date -
Name of the Company

Agent 1f any

details of Reglstrar and Transfef :

iv. Category / Sub-—Category of the _3 Housmg Finance Company
_Company - .
v. | Address of the Reglstered offlce_ 1107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash
~and contact details ' ‘| Place, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034
vi. | Whetherlistedcompany ~~ No
vii. -Name, Address and Contact | Link Intxme India Private Limited

Address: C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai- 400083. '

" Contact Person: Mr Vishwas Attavar
: 1 Tel  +91 22 49186000
i Fax: +91 22 49186060

e Email: vishwas.attavar@linkintime,co.in |

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the

company: -
fSr. _ '-.jName and Descrlptlon of - NIC Code of i:hé T % to total turnover of :
No. . fmam products /i servu:es Product/ serv1ce the Company
' 1 | Providing Housing Loans & | 64920 100%
i . Mortgage
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HILPARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. | Name And Address Of @ CIN/GLN | Holding/ % of | Applicable
No. | The Company ‘ Subsidiary  shares | Section
_ - JAssociate held
1. ART Business & U67190D1.2016PTC | Holding 100.00 | 2(46)
Consumer Finance (India) | 292567
Private Limited

2. ARTDistribution (I) | U67190DL2015PTC | Subsidiary | 100.00 | 287)i) |
 Private Limited  [283977 | . i

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of | No. of Sharcs held at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the | [%

Shareholders " year " . _

A Promoter
1) Indian -

a) . dual/ e L TR - —— e B e Negl
HUF igibl

b) P - . - - - o - . - i
¢} State - - - - - ' -

Govt(s) , _
d) Bodies Corp | 37,49,99,900 - 37,49,99,900 | 99.99 | 38,49,99,900 | - 38,49,99,900 | 100 Nepl :

o)Banks/FI - e _ R o et |
f) Any Other - - - - - - - -

2) Foreign - - - 0.00 - - - 000 | -

g) NRIs- - - L ) 0.00 - - - 000 -
'Individuals | o

FREER IO TENVI T RO G T
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h) Other- - - - - -
Individuals
i} Bodies Corp. - - 0.00 - - - 000 | -
j) Banks /FI - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 .
k) Any - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 -
Other....
2)
Total Promoter
Shareholding Negl
(A)=(A)(1)+ 37,49,99,997 37,4999,998 © 9999 | 38,49,99,900 @ - | 384999900 | 100 | igibl
@e M i °
B. Public . ..
‘Shareholdin
g oo e N
1. Inshhxtlons - - N ..0 00 % VR = T. ,..,9:00 T
a) Mutual - - 0.00 - . - 000 | -
Funds
b} Banks/FI . - - 000 - ~ - 000 ¢ -
c) Central - ' - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 -
GOVt % N R S
d) ‘State - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 -
¢) Venture - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 -
Capital
{) Insurance - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 -
Companies
g) Flis - - 0.00 | - - - 0.00 -
h} Foreign - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 -
Venture
Capital
Funds
i) Others - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 -
. (specify)
S 1(B)(1
2. Non - - 0.00 - - - 0.00 -
Institutions ;
a} Bodies - . 0.00 - - - 000 | -
Corp.
(i) Indian
{ii} Overseas
b) Individuals |
(1) Individual =" 2 2 0 100 - 100 Negli | Negl
shareholders - gible | igibl
-holdlng ! e
rmmmal Bha:e
capltal up to
Rs.1lakh"
(i) I_ﬂdm_dual
‘shareholders .
holding .-~ © o




e gila;e B
capitalin .
‘excess of Re 1

{Specify)

Total Public ] : | Negli
Shareholding j ' gible
(B)=(BX1)+
(B)2) P e )

by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

& Shara i - - - YT E— - o o5

* The Company is the wholly owned subsid Jﬂbf ART Business & C
hence ABCF had appointed the following shareliolders as nominee shareholders vide Board Resolution dated September 10,

2018:

1. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon for 95 shares
2. Roshini Kapoor for 1 share

3. Rajesh Gandhi for 1 Share

4. Varun Kapur for 1 Share

5. Alkesh Tandon for 1 Share

6. Radha Kapoor Khanna for 1 Share

The Company is in the process of transferring the shaves in the Demat accounts of Nominee shareholders whose beneficial
interest will remain with ABCF




ii.  Shareholding of Promoters

- i _Sharehqldg:_”g : Shareholdi_r_lg_ _at:_the_bggi n_ﬁ_i_n_g_c_;f t_h_e : Sha.reholdmg at the end of the YEa.r
No | Name - . o o year _ o
No of % of tolaI T %of Shares S U Novof B %of total 1 %of | % change
Sharos _jShales of Piedged A Shares _:' Share‘; of lhe | Shares | .in ghare -
S e enc‘umbered :' R 3 Company »i Pledge holdlng' :
i .co.mpa_ny.. toiotal i R d/ dunng .
0 pered
Coito total

1. | ART Business & | 37,49,99.900 100 - 38,4999,900 100 -
Consumer
Finance (India)
Private Limited

2. i Raakhe E;lpoor 95 Negligibl L ¢ - -
Tandon e

5 Radi Kamaor L W-I“\]eg]igiblm e R - . o

@

4.| Alkesh Tandon | 1 Negligibl - - o T——— -

44

,,,,, 5 R Kapoor 1 Neghglbl - W STV 0 - "
e

N 77" T3 Sl OIS B NPT N BT B

iti.  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholdmg at the begmnmg of | . Cumulative Shareholding durmg the year = -

Date wise Increase/ -
Decrease in Shareholdmg
during the year _ S _ ' b C L
Allotment - 8 May 2018 - _ S R 1,00,00,000. 7 . 260
Appointment of nominee S IR npoe . SRR
shareholders - 10 September - |
2018 - o T .
Raakhe Kapoor Tandon T ST b lgee Negligible
Roshmeapoor o ' : L g S L Negligible - '




Rajesh Gandpi . . -~ -~ p 1%l Negligible
Varun Kapur 00D L Negligible
Alkesh Tandon - .. - .0 "~ T 1% i Negligible
Radha KapoorKhanna - =1 - 7 0 a0 Negligible

Transfer of shares = - T T DT S .
Raakhe Kapoor Tandon .~ .~ " Gl T e Negligible
ROSIIifI_i Kﬁp‘?ﬂf . Ce L N R - - N(—\ghglbl(n
Rajesh Gandhi. - Negligible
Varun Kapur .- Negligible
Alkesh Tandon - - g Negligible
Radha Kapoor Khamma - ... Negligible

R R el i

Atthe End of theyear | 374999900 . 100 T EgB0,60000 T qeg

* The Company is the wholly owned subsidiary of ART Business & Counsumer Finance (India) Private Limited (ABCF) and
hence ABCF had appointed the following shareholders as nominee shareholders vide Board Resolution dated September 10,
2018; However, the following sharcholders being nominces, their respective sharcholding is sot added at the end of the year:

1. Raakhe Kapoor Taudos for 95 shares
2. Roslini Kapoor for 1 share

3. Rajesh Gandhi for 1 Share

4. Varun Kapur for 1 Share

5. Alkesh Tandon for 1 Share

6. Radha Kapoor Khanna for 1 Share

The Company is in the process of transferring the shares in e Demat accounts of Nominee shareholders whose beneficial
interest will remain with ABCF,

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

: Name 000 - Particulars -:oo oo |Shareholding at the umulative Sha.rehqldi_ng-

. [beginning of the year . . |during the year -

" ART Business & g
Consumer Finance

(India) Private Limiled | At thebeginning of theyear |+~ /4999900 )1 99.99 % | 874999900 | . 9999 .

(ABCE)
RS | Atthe End of the year (or on the date [3849,99,900 | 100~ |3849,99900. | 100
“of separation, if separated during the - | ~*'. 5] T T
of sepuration, i seporated during

‘(Raakhe Kf_ip_(_)o;'__.' | At the beginning of the year o

‘Tandon) 95 - |Negligible| 95 |Negligible

. {Atthe End of the yearor onthedate | = D D R
.| of separation, if scparated duringthe | o[ o SR : s '
| veor fopoted i B |55 |Negligbie| 55 Negligible
_shareholder by ABCY for 95 shares]* - 1




{Radha Kapoor) . :

- ‘At the beginning of the year

N Neghglble

o Ne_:_gli_g_iblé“ |

. {At the End ‘of the year or on the date .

of separation, il separated durmg the

“{ * year) fappointed as nominee : ;
- shareholder by ABCF for 1 share]* -

R Neghglble

~ INegligible

“(Roshini Kapoor)

L Atthe beg,mnmy of Lh(, yeaz - a

T Negligible

. |Negligible -

{Althe End of the year or on the date -
“of separation, if separated during the -

year) [appmnted as nominee . -

" shareholder by ABCF for 1 share].* .

- [Negligible

7 Négligible_ .

(Alkesh Tandon) - =

At the begjmmng of the year

" |Negligible

~[Negligible

(At the End “of the year or.on the date
of separation, if separaled during g the .

- year) [appointed as nominee . . -
“shareholder by ABCF for 1 share]*

S Negligible | -

Negligible .

| At the beginning of the year "~ . .

- Negligible

" [Negligible -

~ 1 (At the End ‘of the year or on the date. |
“oof separdtlon, i sepalated durmg Ihe =

year) [appointed as nominee. "

1 “shareholder by ABCF for'1 share}* L

 Negiigible| 1

T [Negligible

 (Rajesh Gandhi) ~

At lhe boymmng of the yea1 L

" Negligible

T Negligible.

(Al the End of the year or on Lhe date :.
-~ of separation, if qeparated during Lhe .

yeal) [appointed as nominee

“shareholder by ABCF for 1 sham].* o

- Negligible

Negligible -

“pursuait to appomtment as Nominee sharelolders by ART Business & Consumer Pmmzce (Indm) Private Limited (ABCF)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

_ Shareholdmg at the begmmng of | Cu.mulahve Shareholdmg during
theyear _ _ ;theyear : R R

' (Raakhe Kapoor Tandon)

A
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| @)
. Shareholding during the year specifying :
~the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.
~allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equily
ete): i

Al_ e ()[l_heyom e e

(95

’ '*p:éfé}miit” to 'appoinhnent as Nowminee shareholder “IJ.;I)‘.ART; Business & Consumer Finance :(Iirdfaj Private Limited =~~~

{ABCF)

Indebtedness

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
{Amount in Rs)

payment:

VI

|"~" Secured Loans -
excluding deposits

Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

-Unsecured -

Loans

“Deposits

o “Total o
.. Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount 559,901,504
ii) Interest due but
not paid -
iii) Interest accrued

but not 263,918

Total (i+i+il) | 560,165,422

559,901,504

263,918
560,165,422

Change in
Indebtedness during
the financial year

- Addition

- Reduction

700,000,333
135,634,844

2,710,000,000
1,845,000,000

3,410,000,333
1,980,634,844

Net Chalgge 564,365,_-%89

865,000,000

1,429,365,489

Indebtedness at the
end of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount
ii} Interest due but
not paid

iii) Interest accrued
but not due

1,124,549,684

865,000,000

Total 1,124,549,684

(i+ii+iii)

865,00O,OOBMW

1,989,549,684

1,989,549,684




1. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

{Amount in Rs)
Tola

7 Amount
Arvind Roshan Hali |

_ Managing Director & CEO

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 1,49,66,148 1,49,66,148
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
33,852 33,852
(b) Value of perquisites u/s -
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961
Commission - -
- as % of profit
-_others, specify... S R
Others, please specify - -

Number of Stock Options

6,00,000"2 6,00,000

i
i i
|

‘
j
?

!
|

*1The Remuneration of MD &CEO has been revised vide sharoholder's resolution dated "M'ay 06, 2019
*2 Mr Arvind Roshan Hali was granted 5,00,000 equity shares under AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019




ii. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Directors

Slno . Particularsof

N

(Amount in Rs)

| _ SRR U Key _Ma'nageria'l_ Personnel LA
oo o Remumeration ol
 Ritika Sati, - PankajJain, .o
~Company - - - Chief Financial = - Total
o Seqretary. - Officer it
Gross salary :
(a) Salary as per :
provisions contained f
 in section 17(1) of the 13,66,212 : 82,12,270 : 95,78,482
- Income-tax Act, 1961 :
(b) Value of _ :
 perquisites u/s17(2) - ; 37,730 : 37,730
Income-tax Act, 1961 |
(¢) Profits in lieu of :
- salary under section : :
- 17(3) Income-tax Act - ‘ )
- Stock Option SO S
Sweathiquity -
- Commission .
.- as % of profit -
- others, specify... . L SN SRR
- Others, please '
 specify. R . | o |
oo Total 01366212 . 8250000 . 9616212
. Stock Option : 40,000 - 1,50,000 | 1,90,000

*Mr Pankaj Jain was granted 1,50,000 options under AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019
*Ms Ritika Sati was granted 25,000 options under AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019

iii.  Remuneration to Directors Other Than MD /Manager /WTD

(Amount in Rs)

jI’_articﬁanrs'_c')_f:' o

- Puficulan of T

-Amount

Ms Anila Kapur Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Mr Brijesh Kumar
(Appointed w.ef | Sukhraj Pal Kochhar Gupta
September 05, {(Independent (Independent
2018) Director) Director)
{Independent
Director)




Independent Directors
Fee for aftending board
and commitiee Meetings

Non—Executive Directors
' Fee for attending board
committee meetings

*Commission 40,000 2,80,000 1,80,000 5,00,000
*Others, please spec1fy ) _
~Total (1) - : 40,000 . 2,80,000 ..1,80,000 - . “5,00,000

thereol

-Commission
-Others, please specify
(Conveyance Charges) -
Total (2) ' -
“Total (B)=(i+2) L T A s DO B
Overall Ceiling as per Not exceeding Rupees One Lakh per Director per Meeting of Board or Committee

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

VII.Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences:

pe1 Sub-section (5) of the Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the (_ompames (Appointment

 Type " Section of | Brief . - Details of Penalty/ - Authority | Appeal made.
S cithe 0o descrlptlon Punishment/ = _Z [RD/ .- If any (glve
C_(')_r__np'ani_es : L _Compoundmg fees T NCLT/ - detalls)
L Sy = i_1mpose 4 . Coun]
A Company . . o
Penalty - - - - -
Pumshment I - - - -
Compoundmg - - - - -
_ A B, Directors
) Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - i -
Compoundmg - - - -
e SR oG Other Offlcers In Default
Penalty - | - - - -
 Punishment - - - - -
._Compounding SR - -




Annexure B
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
(CIN: U65999DI1.2013P1.C255432)

107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,
Pitampura, New Delhi -110034, INDIA

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”), which is an unlisted public
limited company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

We report that :-

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements
of the Company.

d) We have obtained the Management representation, wherever required, about the
compliances of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulation, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis,

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has

conducted the affairs of the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company

A
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has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315t March 2019
(“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board related processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The
members are requested to read this report along with our letter of even date annexed

to this report as “Annexure ~ 1.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2019
according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made

thereunder;
(iii)  Nationa! Housing Bank Act, 1987 and Housing Finance Companies (“NHB")

Directions, 2010 and other applicable rules thereat,

We further report that, there were no actions/ events in pursuance of:

(@)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder;
(b)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed

thereunder;
(0 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
' and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;
H The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)

Regulations, 2009;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998; and

(h)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act'):-

I.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015;
ili. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with

client;




requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Financial Year 2018-
19.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial
Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (55-1) and General Meetings (S5-2)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India(ICSI), which the Company has

generally complied with.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, to the extent applicable, as mentioned

above.

1. The Company is engaged in the business of financing housing projects and giving
housing Loans, to provide finance to agencies engaged in the business of construction of
residential houses or flats for purposes of construction of such houses and flats, including
the acquisition and development of land for construction of such house or flats., there is
no other specific law applicable to the Company except details given above in point (i) to
(iif} hereinabove.

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws,
like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same
have been subject to review by Statutory financial audit and other designated

professionals.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. As per the representation given by the Management, the required
Committees of the Board of Directors were duly constituted. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice has been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings during
the financial year under review, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
properly before the scheduled meeting, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the Meeting and for
meaningful participation at the Meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the
decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.
The decisions which have taken place in meetings and required to be intimated in
necessary returns to ROC, have been filed general on time in most of the cases,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company to
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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We further report that during the audit period the Company has taken the following
events/ actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, Guidelines, standards, etc. (referred to above).
a) Increase in the overall limit of ESOPs from 25,00,000 to 50,00,000 issued by the

Company to the Employees;

b) Allotment of 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid-up,
aggregating to Rs 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores Only) on Preferential basis to
“ART Consumer & Business Finance (India) Limited” the shareholder of the Company

during the Financial Year 2018-19;

¢} Alterations in Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company by
way of increase in Authorized Share Capital from Rs 4,00,00,00,000 (Rupees Four
Hundred Crores only) to Rs 1000,00,00,000 (Rupees One Thousand Crores) vide
Ordinary Resolution dated September 7, 2018 and change in object clause of the
Company by way of inserting sub-clause 3 under Part A of Clause 111, after the existing
sub-clause 2 and by deletion of existing sub-clause 34 of Part-B of Clause 1II vide
Special Resolution dated February 7, 2019;

d) Appointment of Shri Pradeep Kumar having DIN No. 07683382 as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. August 16, 2019;

e) Appointment of Smt Anita Kapoor having DIN No. 07902012 as an Additional
Director in the capacity of Independent Director of the Company w.e.f September 05,

2019;

f) Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 4,00,00,00,000/ -
(Rupees Four Hundred Crores only) to 10,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Thousand
Crores only) vide Ordinary Resolution dated September 7, 2018;

g} Resignation of Shri Vipin Jain as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 15th May, 2018 and
Appointment of Shri Pankaj Parasmal Jain as Chief Financial Officer and Key
Managerial Personnel w.e.f. 16th May, 2018;

h) Change in the name of the Company from “ART Affordable Housing Finance
(India) Limited” to “ART Housing Finance (India) Limited” with effect from
September 20, 2018 as prescribed on fresh certificate of incorporation issued by
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhj & Haryana;

i} ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Limited had appointed Ms
Raakhe Kapoor Tandon, Ms Radha Kapoor, Ms Roshini Kapoor, Mr Alkesh Tandon,
Mr Varun Kapur and Mr Rajesh Gandhi as their nominee shareholders vide their
Board Resolution dated September 10, 2018. Also, during the year under review, Ms
Raakhe Kapoor Tandon, Ms Radha Kapoor, Ms Roshini Kapoor, Mr Alkesh Tandon,

y
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Mr Varun Kapur and Mr Rajesh Gandhi had transferred their respective shares to ART
Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Limited.

For Dolly Vilacha & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Dolly Vilacha

Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: A27277
Certificate of Practice No 15356

Date;
Place: Delhi
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Annexure ~ I to Secretarial Audit Report

To,

The Members

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

(Erstwhile ART Affordable Housing Finance (India) Limited)
(CIN: U65999DL2013P1.C255432)

107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,

Pitampura, New Delhi -110034, INDIA

Our Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the Financial Year ended
31st March, 2019 is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the provisions of corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
secretarial records produced for audit.

2. We have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered appropriate
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the

secretarial records.

3. While, forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report, we have also
considered compliance related action taken by the Company after 31st March 2019

but before the issue of this report.

4. We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see
whether the correct facts are reflected therein. We also examined the compliance

procedures followed by the Company on a test basis.

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the Company.

6. Our Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has

conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Dolly Vilacha & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Dolly Vilacha

Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: A27277
Certificate of Practice No 15356
Date:

Place:
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Annexure - C

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h} of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2013}

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or fransactions not at arm's length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended March
31, 2019 which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL

(INR in crores)
Name of | Nature | Nature of Duration | Total Salient Date of | Amount
the of Contract/ of Value of | Terms of Approva | paid as
Related | Relatio | Arrangeme | Contract/ | Contract/ | Contract/ 1 by the | advance,
Party nship nf/ Arrange | Arrangem ; Arrangeme | Board if any
transaction | ment/ ent/ nt/
transactio ) Transacti | transaction
n on
NIL

For and on behalf of Board
For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Roshan Hali
Managing Director & CEQ
DIN:05285114

Director
DIN:03546341




Annexure - D

INFORMATION RELATED TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
FEARNING AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT IN
TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULE (8)(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The information in Part A and B, pertaiming to conversation of energy and technology
absorption are not applicable to ART Housing Finance (India) Limited, as it is a
Housing Loan provider. However, the Company requires energy for its operations
and every endeavour has been made to ensure the optimal use of energy, avoid
wastage and conserve energy as far as possible.

The Company continuously evaluates global innovation and technology as a
benchmark and wherever required, enter into arrangements to avail the latest

technology trends and practices.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo

Further, during the year under review, there were no foreign exchange earnings or
outgo. '
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DOLLY VILACHA & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

- Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To

The Members

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

(Erstwhile ART Affordable Housing Finance (India) Limited)
(CIN: U65999DL2013PLC255432)

107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,

Pitampura, New Delhi -110034, INDIA

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”), which is an unlisted public limited company. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

We report that:-

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of
the Company.

d) We have obtained the Management representation, wherever requlred about the
compliances of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulation, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March 2019 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board related processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

Address: A-45,1Ind Floor, Krishna Park Extension; Gali No. 10, Tilak Nagar, Delhi-110018, Delhi, INDIA
Email id.: csdollyvilacha@gmail.com; Contact: +91 97177 16752; +91 97178277
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DOLLY VILACHA & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

hereinafter. The members are requested to read this report along with our letter of even date
annexed to this report as “Annexure - I”.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2019 according to the
provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and Housing Finance Companies (“NHB”) Directions,
2010 and other applicable rules thereat.

We further report that, there were no actions / events in pursuance of:

(@) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder;

(b) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

. Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;
b The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,

2009;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
and

(h) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBT Act’):-

i The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;
ili. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client;

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Financial Year 2018-19.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards on
Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India(ICSI), which the Company has generally complied with.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, to the extent applicable, as mentioned above. ~l\j\LAC,s,

&
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DOLLY VILACHA & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

1. The Company is engaged in the business of financing housing projects and giving housing
Loans, to provide finance to agencies engaged in the business of construction of residential
houses or flats for purposes of construction of such houses and flats, including the
acquisition and development of land for construction of such house or flats., there is no
other specific law applicable to the Company except details given above in point (i) to (iii)
hereinabove. ‘

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct
and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to
review by Statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. As per the
representation given by the Management, the required Committees of the Board of Directors
were duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice has been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings during the
financial year under review, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent properly before the
scheduled meeting, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the Meeting and for meaningful participation at the
Meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. The decisions which
have taken place in meetings and required to be intimated in necessary returns to ROC, have
been filed general on time in most of the cases.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company to
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has taken the following events/
actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, Guidelines, standards, etc. (referred to above).

a) Increase in the overall limit of ESOPs from 25,00,000 to 50,00,000 issued by the Company to
the Employees;

b) Allotment of 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid-up,
aggregating to Rs 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores Only) on Preferential basis to “ART
Consumer & Business Finance (India) Limited” the shareholder of the Company during the
Financial Year 2018-19;

c) Alterations in Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company by way of
increase in Authorized Share Capital from Rs 4,00,00,00,000 (Rupees Four Hundred Crores
only) to Rs 1000,00,00,000 (Rupees One Thousand Crores) vide Ordinary Resolution dated
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September 7, 2018 and change in object clause of the Company by way of inserting sub-clause 3
under Part A of Clause III, after the existing sub-clause 2 and by deletion of existing sub-clause
34 of Part-B of Clause Il vide Special Resolution dated February 7, 2019;

d) Appointment of Shri Pradeep Kumar having DIN No. 07683382 as an Additional Director of
the Company w.e.f. August 16, 2018;

e) Appointment of Smt Anita Kapoor having DIN No. 07902012 as an Additional Director in the
capacity of Independent Director of the Company w.e.f September 05, 2018;

f) Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 4,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four
Hundred Crores only) to 10,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crores only) vide Ordinary
Resolution dated September 7, 2018;

g) Resignation of Shri Vipin Jain as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 15th May, 2018 and
Appointment of Shri Pankaj Parasmal Jain as Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial
Personnel w.e.f. 16th May, 2018;

h) Change in the name of the Company from “ART Affordable Housing Finance (India) Limited”
to “ART Housing Finance (India) Limited” with effect from September 20, 2018 as prescribed on
fresh certificate of incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana;

i) During the year under review, ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Limited
(ABCF) in its Board Meeting held on September 10, 2018 had appointed Ms Raakhe Kapoor
Tandon, Ms Radha Kapoor, Ms Roshini Kapoor, Mr Alkesh Tandon, Mr Varun Kapur and Mr
Rajesh Gandhi as their nominee shareholders and also Ms Raakhe Kapoor Tandon, Ms Radha
Kapoor, Ms Roshini Kapoor, Mr Alkesh Tandon, Mr Varun Kapur and Mr Rajesh Gandhi had
transferred their respective shares to ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private
Limited.

Certificate of Pratlce No 15356

Date: 27.06.2019
Place: Delhi
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Annexure - I to Secretarial Audit Report

To,

The Members

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

(Erstwhile ART Affordable Housing Finance (India) Limited)
(CIN: U65999DL2013PLC255432)

107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,

Pitampura, New Delhi -110034, INDIA

Our Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the Financial Year ended 31st March,
2019 is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the provisions of corporate and
other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial
records produced for audit.

We have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered appropriate to
. obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial

records.

While, forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report, we have also considered

compliance related action taken by the Company after 31st March 2019 but before the

issue of this report.

We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether-the

correct facts are reflected therein. We also examined the compliance procedures followed

by the Company on a test basis. ‘

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books

of accounts of the Company.

Our Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the Company. '

For Dolly Vilacha & Co.

Date: 27.06.2019
Place: Delhi

Address: A-45,1Ind Floor, Krishna Park Extension; Gali No. 10, Tilak Nagar, Delhi-110018, Delhi, INDIA
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HOUSING FINANCE
Own your dreams

NOTICE OF 6™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 6th (Sixth) Annual General Meeting of ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited (formerly known as ART Affordable Housing Finance (India} Limited) will be held
on Friday, June 28, 2019 at 4:00 PM at the Registered office of the Company situated at 107,
Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, North West, Delhi 110034 at g shorter notice
to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Standalone Financial Statements and
Annual Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2019, the Directors” Report and Auditors’ Report thereon and in this regard to consider and
if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as Ordinary

Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT the Annual Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company i.e. Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2019 along with the Statement of Profit & Loss
and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date and Notes annexed to
and forming integral part of financial stalements be and are hereby approved and adopted.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Annual Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company i.e. Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2019 along with the Statement of Profit &
Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date and Notes annexed
to and forming integral part of financial statements be and are hereby approved and

adopted.”

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr Raj Vikash Verma, Non-Executive Director (DIN:
03546341) who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and
in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the approval of the members of the Company be,
and is hereby accorded to the reappointment of Mr Raj Vikash Verma (DIN: 03546341) as
a director, to the extent that he is required to retire by rotation.” *

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard, pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s} or reenactment(s) thereof,
for the time being in force), M/s Walker Chandiok & Co, LLP FRN No (001076N/
N500013), be and is hereby appointed as Auditors of the Company fgr g term of 5 (five)
. . . . e sl .
consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meetin \@E Ae.. 61:@1 sion
of the 11t Annual General Meeting, at such remuneration as shall be by the Bpard of
Directors/ Audit Committee of the Company.” ‘ B

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED ,
{Formerly known as ART Affordable Housing Finance {India) Limited) S
Registered Office: 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi - 1160034 | CIN: U65999DL201 3PLCY55437




Special Business:

To consider the appointment of Ms Anita Kapur (DIN: 07902012) as an Independent
Director of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass with or
without modification the following Resclution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Ms. Anita
Kapur (holding DIN 07902012), a non-executive Director of the Company, who is eligible
for appointment and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for 5 (Five) years
w.e.f. September 05, 2018 and shall not be liable to retire by rotation hereinafter in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.”

To consider the appointment of Mr Pradeep Kumar (DIN: 07683382) as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass with or
without modification the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 149, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies Appointment and Qualification of Directors,
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being
in force) Mr Pradeep Kumar (DIN: 07683382) who was appointed as an Additional Director
by the Board of Directors with effect from August 16, 2018 in terms of Section 161(1) of the
Act and who holds the office till 6" Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed
as a Non- Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RT Housing Finance (India) Limited

Rittka Sati

Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
ACS- 24016

574/3, Prem Nagar, Sector 12A Road,
Gurugram, Haryana- 122001

Date: June 27, 2019
Place: Gurugram




NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITTLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY
NEED NOT TO BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT
APPOINTING A PROXY, SHOULD HOWEVER BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY, NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. ‘
Member shall bring duly filled up attendance slip sent herewith to attend the
Meeting.

The register of Directors Sharcholding maintained under section 170 of the
Companies Act will be available for inspection by the Members at the Meeting.

The register of Contracts maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013
and all documents mentioned therein in the Resolutions and in the explanatory
statement will be available for inspection by the Members at the Meeting,

An Explanatory statement under section 102 of the Act relating to the special business
is annexed. o




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

Item No. 4

Based on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors of the Company have appointed Ms Anita Kapur an Additional Director in the
capacity of an Independent Director of the Company to hold the office for a period of five (5)
consecutive years, not liable to retire by rotation, subject to consent by the Members of the
Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM).

As an Additional Director, Ms Anita Kapur holds office till the date of Annual General
Meeting and is eligible for being appointed as an Independent Director. The Company has
also received respective declaration from Ms Kapur confirming that he meets the criteria of
independence as prescribed under the Act.

Ms Kapur is also not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164
of the Act and has given his consent to act a Director on the Board of the Company.,

In the opinion of the Board Ms Anita Kapur fulfills the conditions for his appointment as an
Independent Director as specified in the Companies Act, 2013,

Considering the rich and vast experience of Ms Anita Kapur, your Board believes that his
induction in the Board will strength to the Company. The details of Ms. Anita Kapur in
pursuance of the provisions of the Secretarial Standards are mentioned in Annexure 1.

None of other Directors except Ms Anita Kapur or Key Managerial Personnel and their
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
Resolution, The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution(s) set
out at item no. 4 of the Notice for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 5

The Board on recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee have
appointed Mr Pradeep Kumar as an Additional Director of the Company in the capacity of
Non-Executive Director w.e.f. August 16, 2018, liable to retire by rotation, subjecl to consent
by the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received the consent in writing from Mr Pradeep Arora to act as Director
in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014; (ii) intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that they are not
disqualified in accordance with sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The details of Mr. Pradeep Kumar in pursuance of the provisions of the Secretarial Standards
are mentioned in Armexure 1.

None of other Directors except Mr Pradeep Arora or Key Managerial Personnel and their
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
Resolutions. The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ofcl Resolution(s) set
out at item no. 5 and 6 of the Notice for the approval of the Members, BN




Annexure 1

Annexure to the Notice of 6** Annual General Meeting:

Details of Directors who are being appointed or reappointed as per the

Secretarial

Persons of the
Company

Age 64 years 63 years 37 years
Qualification M.A (Economic), M.A Post Graduate
MBA Diploma in
Management from ISB
and B Tech
Experience Over 35 years of | Retired Over 15 years of
Experience in | Chairperson of | experience in
financial  services | CBDT Investment
and mortgage Management,
industry Investment Banking,
Investors  Relations
and Technology
consulting
Terms and | To be re-appointed, | To be appointed for | To be appointed as a
Conditions  of | being eligible to|a period of five | Non-Executive
appointment or | retire by rotation years and to be paid | Director of the
re-appointment the sitting fees for | Company
along with the attending the Board
details of and Committee
remuneration Meetings
sought to be
paid
Remuneration NIL Sitting Fees of Rs NIL
last drawn 20,000/ - for Board
Meeting held on
February 07, 2019
and Rs 10,000/ -
each for NRC and
Audit Committee
Date of first July 28, 2017 September 5, 2018 August 16, 2018
appeintment on :
the Board
Shareholding NIL NIL NIiL
in the Company '
Relationship N.A. N.A. N.A.
with other
Directors,
Managers and
other Key
Managerial




The number of
meetings of the
Board attended
during the year

Directorship in
other
Companies




ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN - U65999D1.2013PLC255432
107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi Delhi-110034
E-mail ID- secretarial@arthfc.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Date of Meeting: -

Folio No./ DP ID Client ID No.: -

Name of First Named Member/Proxy/: -
Authorised Representative; -

Name of Joint Member(s), if any:

No. of Shares held: -

I/ we certify that I/ we am/are Member(s)/ proxy for the Member(s) of the Company.
I/ we hereby record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company being
held on Friday, June 28, 2019 at 4:00 PM at the Registered Office of the Company situated at

107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, North West, Delhi 110034 at a shorter
notice to transact the businesses as specified in the Notice of 6t Annual General Meeting.

Signature of First holder/Proxy/Authorised Representative
Signature of 1st Joint holder

Signature of 2nd Joint holder

Note(s) : 1. Please sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the Attendance Verification
Counter at the MEETING VENUE.

2. Only shareholders of the Company and/or their Proxy will be allowed to attend the
Meeting, i




FORM NO. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19¢3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U65999D12013PLC255432

Name of the Company: ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED
Registered office: 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi Delhi-

110034

Name of the Member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:
1/ We, being the Member (s) of ............. shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint
1. Name: ....ooovevvivinennens AdAress: i e e e
E-mail Id: ................... Signature: ................ ,or failing him ...
2. Name: ...ooovviiinnin AdAress: ..o
E-mail Id: .................. Signature: ................ ,or failing him. ...,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, June 28, 2019 at 4:00 PM at
the Registered office of the Company situated at 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,
Pitampura, North West, Delhi 110034 at a shorter notice.

Affix
Revenue

Signed this...... dayof......... 2019 Stamp of
Re.l/-

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company, plot less than 48 hours before the commencement
Py -

of the Meeting,. S \\




Venue of the Annual General Meeting
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